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Introduction

Poste Italiane SpA (the “Parent Company”) is the company formed following conversion of the former Public Administration
entity, “Poste Italiane”, under Resolution 244 of 18 December 1997. Its registered office is at Viale Europa 190, Rome (ltaly).

Poste ltaliane’s shares have been listed on the Mercato Telematico Azionario (the MTA, an electronic stock exchange) since 27
October 2015. At 31 December 2024, the Company is 35% owned by CDP and 29.3% owned by the MEF, with the remain-
ing shares held by institutional and retail investors. Poste Italiane SpA continues to be under the control of the MEF. At 31
December 2024, the Parent Company holds 11,492,604 of its treasury shares (equal to about 0.880% of the share capital).

The Poste Italiane Group (the “Group”) provides a universal postal service in ltaly as well as integrated communication, logis-
tics, financial and insurance products and services throughout the country via its national network of approximately 13,000
post offices.

The Group’s business is assessed and presented on the basis of four operating segments: (i) Mail, Parcels and Distribution, (i)
Postepay Services, (i) Financial Services and (iv) Insurance Services.

The Mail, Parcels and Distribution Services Sector includes, in addition to the mail, parcel and logistics activities, also those
related to the network of sellers, Post Offices and corporate functions of Poste ltaliane SpA that operate for the benefit of the
other sectors in which the Group operates. The sector also includes the provision of welfare services.

The Postepay Services Sector includes the management of payments and e-money services, also carried out through the
network of LIS sales points, as well as mobile and fixed telephone services and Energy sales services (electricity and gas) to
the end customer by the company PostePay SpA.

The Financial Services Sector refers to the placement and distribution activities of financial and insurance products and servic-
es by Bancoposta, such as current accounts, postal savings products (on behalf of Cassa Depositi € Prestiti), mutual funds,
financing provided by banking institutions, insurance policies and the activities of BancoPosta Fondi SpA SGR.

The Insurance Services segment mainly relates to the activities of Poste Vita SpA, which operates in the Life insurance sector
mainly in Ministerial Classes | and lll, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, such as Poste Assicura SpA and Net Insurance
SpA, which operate in the P&C sector with the exclusion of the Motor Insurance business, and Net Insurance Life SpA, which
mainly offers insurance coverage related and instrumental to the P&C products offered by its direct parent company Net
Insurance SpA.

This section of the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2024 includes the consolidated financial statements of the
Poste Italiane Group, the separate financial statements of Poste Italiane SpA and the BancoPosta RFC Separate Report. The
Report has been prepared in Euro, the currency of the economy in which the Group operates.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements consist of the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements. All amounts in the financial state-
ments and the notes are shown in millions of euro and rounded (without decimal figures), unless where stated otherwise. It
follows that the sum of the rounded amounts may not coincide with the rounded totals.

The separate financial statements of Poste Italiane SpA consist of the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes.
Amounts in the financial statements are shown in euros (except for the statement of cash flows, which is shown in thousands
of euro), whilst those in the notes are shown in millions of euro (without decimals) unless otherwise stated. It follows that the
sum of the rounded amounts may not coincide with the rounded totals.
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1. Introduction

The consolidated and separate financial statements contain notes applicable to both sets of financial statements, providing
information on matters common to both the Group and Poste Italiane SpA. The relevant matters specifically regard:

* the way the financial statements are presented and relevant information on accounting standards;

* significant events during the year.

The BancoPosta RFC Separate Report, which forms an integral part of Poste Italiane SpA financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the specific financial reporting rules laid down by the applicable banking regulations, is dealt with separately
in this Section.

The consolidated financial statements of the Poste Italiane Group and the separate financial statements of Poste Italiane SpA

(including the separate statement of BancoPosta RFC) as at 31 December 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors on
26 March 2025, the date on which publication was authorised in accordance with IAS 10-Events after the reporting period.
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Basis of preparation and significant
accounting policies

2.1 Compliance with IAS/IFRS

The annual accounts are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and endorsed by the European Union (“EU”) in EC Regulation 1606/2002
of 19 July 2002, and in accordance with Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, which introduced regulations governing
the adoption of IFRS in ltalian law.

The term IFRS includes all the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”, previously known as the
Standing Interpretations Committee or “SIC”), adopted by the European Union and contained in the EU Regulations in force at
31 December 2024, regarding which no derogations were made.

2.2 Basis of presentation

The accounting standards reflect the full operations of the Group and Poste Italiane SpA in the foreseeable future. The compa-
nies of the Poste Italiane Group, as operating entities, prepare the financial statements on the assumption of business continuity,
also taking into account the Group’s economic and financial prospects derived from the 2024-2028 Strategic Plan and updated
with the 2025 Budget respectively approved on 19 March 2024 and 21 February 2025.

The statement of financial position has been prepared on the basis of the “current/non-current distinction”?*?, In the Statement
of profit (loss) for the year, the classification criterion based on the nature of the cost components has been adopted;
details of interest income calculated using the effective interest criterion, as well as gains and losses deriving from the derecog-
nition of financial assets measured at amortised cost (as per IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements paragraph 82) are
provided in section 4.3 Notes to the Statement of profit or loss. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect
method?>*.

The accounting standards and the recognition, measurement and classification criteria adopted in these annual accounts are
the same as those used in the previous year’s preparation, with the exception of what is stated in section 2.3 - Newly applied
accounting standards and interpretations.

The information provided in these annual financial statements takes into account the guidelines and recommendations of Italian
and European regulatory and supervisory bodies (including ESMA and CONSOB?*) published during the year to provide guidance
in the current macroeconomic context. The accounting implications of complying with these recommendations are described in
section 2.7 - Climate change and macroeconomic context.

In preparing the annual accounts, the CONSOB regulations contained in Resolution 15519 of 27 July 2006 and in Ruling
DEM/6064293 of 28 July 2006 have been taken into account.

242. Current assets include assets (such as inventories and trade receivables) that are sold, consumed or realised as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are
not expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period (IAS 1, paragraph 68).

243. Under the indirect method, net cash from operating activities is determined by adjusting profit/(loss) for the year to reflect the impact of non-cash items, any deferment or
provisions for previous or future operating inflows or outflows, and revenue or cost items linked to cash flows from investing or financing activities.

244. Public statement ESMA32-193237008-8369 of 24 October 2024 “European common enforcement priorities for 2024 annual financial reports” and Attention Reminder
No. 2/24 of 20 December 2024.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

In accordance with CONSOB Resolution 15519 of 27 July 20086, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss
and the statement of cash flows show amounts deriving from related party transactions. The statement of profit or loss also
shows, where applicable and of significant amount, income and expenses deriving from non-recurring transactions, or
transactions that occur infrequently in the normal course of business. Detailed information about non-recurring events and trans-
actions, including their impact on the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company and/or the group, is
provided in the section “Material non-recurring events and/or transactions”.

The values shown in the financial statements are compared with the corresponding values for the same period of the previous
year. In order to allow for a uniform comparison with the figures for 2024, certain figures relating to the comparison year have
been reclassified.

Pursuant to article 2447-septies of the Italian Civil Code, following the creation of BancoPosta’s ring-fenced capital in 2011, the
assets and contractual rights included therein (hereafter: “BancoPosta RFC”) are shown separately in Poste ltaliane SpA's state-
ment of financial position, in a specific supplementary statement, and in the notes to the financial statements.

With regard to the interpretation and application of newly published, or revised, international accounting standards, and to certain
aspects of taxation®®, where the related interpretations are based on examples of best practice or case-law that cannot yet be
regarded as exhaustive, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the relevant best practices and the guide-
lines agreed with the Tax Authorities as part of “cooperative compliance”. Any future guidance or updated interpretations will be
reflected in subsequent reporting periods, in accordance with the specific procedures provided for by the related standards.

Lastly, Directive 2004/109/EC (the TranSpArency Directive) and EU Delegated Regulation 2019/815 introduced the requirement
for issuers of securities listed on regulated markets in the European Union to prepare their Annual Financial Report in a single
electronic reporting format (European Single Electronic Format), approved by ESMA. In application of this standard, the Annual
Financial Report was prepared in XHTML format, including the ‘marking’ of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
as well as that of the related financial statements, using the ESMA-IFRS taxonomy and the integrated computer language (iXBRL).

2.3 New accounting standards and interpretations and
those soon to be effective

Accounting standards and interpretations applicable from
1 January 2024

* Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases: Lease liabilities in a sale and leaseback transaction. The purpose of the amend-
ment is to specify how the selling lessee is to measure the lease liability arising from a sale and leaseback transaction in such
a way that it does not recognise income or loss in respect of the retained right of use;

* Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements aimed at providing clarification on how entities should
classify payables and other liabilities between current and non-current; and to improve the information that an entity must
provide when its right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months is subject to covenants;

¢ Amendments to IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows Statement of
Cash Flows, aimed at introducing specific disclosure requirements that enable users of financial statements to effectively
assess the effects 0f**6 supply financing arrangements on the company’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

The adoption of the above amendments did not significantly affect the financial reporting of these financial statements.

245. The tax authorities have issued regular official interpretations only in respect of certain of the tax-related effects of the measures contained in Legislative Decree 38 of 28
February 2005, Law 244 of 24 December 2007 (the 2008 Budget Law) and the Ministerial Decree of 1 April 2009, implementing the 2008 Budget Law, which introduced
numerous changes to IRES and IRAP. The MEF Decree issued on 8 June 2011 contains instructions regarding the coordinated application of EU-endorsed international
accounting standards coming into effect between 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2010, in addition to regulations governing determination of the tax bases for IRES
and IRAP. In addition, the new standards are subject to the rules contained in the endorsement tax decrees issued by the Ministry of the Economy and Finance, in
application of the provisions of Law no. 10 of 26 February 2011 (Decreto milleproroghe).

246. |IAS 7, paragraph 44G, indicates that such arrangements “are characterised by the presence of one or more lenders who pay the amounts owed by the entity to its
suppliers, while the entity agrees to pay [the lenders] in accordance with the terms and conditions of the arrangements, on or after the date on which the suppliers are
paid” [¢] The same paragraph also specifies that instruments such as letters of credit or the use of credit cards do not constitute supply financing arrangements.
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Accounting standards and interpretations soon to be
effective

The following are instead applicable from 1 January 2025:

* Amendment to IAS 21 - Effects of changes in exchange rates with the objective of establishing criteria for a consistent
evaluation of the exchangeability of currencies and the determination of the exchange rate to be applied in cases where
currencies are assessed as non-exchangeable. It also establishes the information to be provided in the notes to the financial
statements as to how these evaluations were made.

As of the reporting date, the IASB has issued some financial reporting standards, amendments and interpretations not yet
endorsed by the European Commission:

* IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements;

* IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures;

*  Annual Improvements Volume 11;

* Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7);

e Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity — Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7.

The potential impact on the Poste Italiane Group’s financial reporting of the accounting standards, amendments and interpre-
tations due to come into effect is currently being assessed. It should also be noted that the Group has not early adopted any
standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet in force.

2.4 Changes to accounting policies

The Poste Italiane Group has adopted, with retroactive effect from 1 January 2024, the provisions of IFRS 9 - Financial instru-
ments for hedge accounting, replacing the provisions previously set out in IAS 39.

With reference to hedge accounting aspects, IFRS 9 rewrites the rules for designating a hedging relationship and verifying its
effectiveness, with the aim of ensuring greater alignment between the accounting representation of hedges and the underlying
risk management logic/activities.

In order to transition to the provisions of IFRS 9, a specific project was prepared, which involved the internal functions of Poste
[taliane SpA and the Group companies with the aim of identifying the impacts deriving from the transition, also in reference to
internal regulations (IFRS 9 Guidelines, corporate processes and procedures, including IFRS 9 hedging sheets®*’).

For hedging transactions in place at 1 January 2024248, by virtue of the fact that the provisions of IFRS 9, in terms of accounting
treatment and types of hedging transactions, do not differ in substance from the provisions of IAS 39, the adoption of IFRS 9
for hedge accounting did not have any transitional accounting impact.

247.The hedging sheets formally document the hedging relationship, indicating the risk management objectives and hedging strategy. Such documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the
hedge effectiveness requirements at the inception of the hedge and prospectively over the life of the hedge (including an analysis of the sources of hedge ineffectiveness
and how it determines the hedge relationship).

248. The hedging report meets the eligibility criteria if:
e it consists of hedging instruments and eligible hedged items;
e there is a formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship, risk management objectives and hedging strategy at the outset;
* coverage is expected to be effective.
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

For detailed information on the hedging transactions entered into by the Poste ltaliane Group and jointly required by IFRS
9-Financial Instruments and IFRS 7-Financial Instruments: Disclosures, please refer to “Note 4.8 - Hedging Transactions” and
“Note 5.8 - Hedging Transactions” in the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements of Poste ltaliane SpA, respectively.

2.5 Material information on accounting standards

The Poste Italiane Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain
items for which fair value measurement is obligatory.

The following is the information on accounting standards considered relevant?*® by the Poste Italiane Group, as well as all
other information considered by management to be useful for understanding the financial statement information.

Property, plant and equipment

The Property, plant and equipment item is stated at acquisition or construction cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. If the case occurs, this cost is increased for charges directly related to the purchase or con-
struction of the asset, including - where identifiable and measurable - that relating to employees involved in the planning and/
or preparation for use phase. Interest expense incurred by the Group for loans specifically for the acquisition or construction
of property, plant and equipment is capitalised together with the value of the asset; all other interest expense is recognised as
finance costs in the Statement of profit or loss for the year in question. Costs incurred for routine and/or cyclical maintenance
and repairs are recognised directly in profit or loss in the related year. The capitalisation of costs attributable to the extension,
modernisation or improvement of assets owned by Group companies or held under lease is carried out to the extent that they
quallify for separate recognition as an asset or as a component of an asset, applying the component approach, which requires
each component with a different estimated useful life and value to be recognised and amortised separately.

The original cost is depreciated on a straight-line basis from the date the asset is available and ready for use, based on the
asset’s expected useful life. Land is not depreciated.

Property and any related fixed plant and machinery located on land held under concession or sub-concession, which is to be
returned free of charge to the grantor at the end of the concession term, are accounted for, based on the nature of the asset,
within property, plant and equipment and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
the residual concession term.

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment is analysed in order to identify the existence of any indicators of impair-
ment (in accordance with IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets; please refer to the treatment of impairment of assets).

249. Information on accounting standards is defined as material if, taken together with other information that can be inferred from the financial statements, it is believed to affect
the decisions made by the primary users of the financial statements. Within the Poste Italiane Group, materiality of information is defined in relation to the nature of the
transactions that give rise to it, as well as the nature of the other events or conditions associated with them.
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Gains and losses deriving from the disposal or retirement of an asset are calculated as the difference between the disposal
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset retired or sold, and are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the transaction occurs.

The Poste Italiane Group’s investment property relates to properties held for the purpose of earning rents or achieving capital
appreciation, or both, and therefore generates cash flows largely independent of other activities. The same accounting stand-
ard and criteria is applied to investment property as to property, plant and equipment.

Please refer to Note 2.6 — Use of estimates for details on the useful life of the Group’s main classes of Tangible assets.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, which is controllable and capable of gen-
erating future economic benefits. The initial carrying amount is adjusted for accumulated amortisation, where an amortisation
process is involved, and for any impairment losses.

In particular, Industrial patents, intellectual property rights, licences and similar rights are initially valued at purchase
cost. This cost is increased for charges directly related to the purchase or preparation for use of the asset. Interest expense
that the Group may incur for loans specifically for the purchase of industrial patents, intellectual property rights, licenses and
similar rights are capitalised together with the value of the asset; all other interest expense is recognised as finance costs in
the Statement of profit or loss for the year. Amortisation starts once the asset is available for use. Amortisation is applied on
a straight-line basis, in order to distribute the purchase cost over the shorter of the expected useful life of the asset and any
related contract terms, from the date the entity has the right to use the asset.

Industrial patents, intellectual property rights, licenses and similar rights include costs directly associated with the internal
production of unique and identifiable software products. Direct costs include - where identifiable and measurable - the charge
related to employees involved in software development. Costs incurred for the maintenance of internally developed software
products are charged to profit or loss for the year in question. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and
extends, systematically and on a straight-line basis, over its estimated useful life. Any research costs are not capitalised.

Among the Group’s intangible assets, Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the company or business acquired, at the date of acquisition. Goodwiill
attributable to investments accounted for using the equity method is included in the carrying amount of the equity investment.
Goodwill is not amortised on a systematic basis, but is tested periodically for impairment in accordance with IAS 36. This test
is performed with reference to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill is attributable. The method applied
in conducting impairment tests and the impact on the accounts of any impairment losses are described in the paragraph,
“Impairment of assets”.

Lastly, it should be noted that following the Purchase Price Allocation activity related to the acquisition of the Net Group, the

value of the “Net Insurance” brand was recognised among the Group’s intangible assets. In analogy to goodwill, this brand,
considered to have indefinite useful life, is not subject to systematic amortisation but to the provisions of IAS 36 on impairment.

Lease arrangements

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the time of its initial recognition; during the contractual life,
the initial assessment is revised only in the event of changes in the conditions of the contract (specifically, contractual duration
or instalments due).
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On the contract commencement date, a right to use the leased asset is recorded, equal to the initial value of the corre-
sponding lease liability, plus payments due before or at the same time as the contract commencement date (e.g. agency
fees). Subsequently, said right of use is measured less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation starts on the commencement date of the lease and extends over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life
of the underlying asset. If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the right of use cannot be
recovered, this asset is tested for impairment in accordance with the provisions of IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets.

The lease liability is initially recorded at the present value of the lease instalments not paid on the date the contract commenc-
es?, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, defined by loan period and for each Group company. The lease liability
is subsequently reduced to reflect the lease payments made and increased to reflect interest on the remaining amount.

The lease liability is restated (resulting in a right-of-use adjustment) in the event of a change in:

¢ the lease term (for example, in the case of early termination of the contract or an extension of the lease);

e the assessment of a purchase option for the underlying asset; in these cases, lease payments due are reviewed on the
basis of the revised lease term and to take account of the change in the amounts payable in view of the purchase option;

 future lease payments deriving from a change in the index or rate used to determine the payments (e.g. ISTAT), or as a result
of a renegotiation of the financial conditions.

In the event of a significant change in the lease term or future lease payments, the residual value of the lease liability is restated
by reference to the marginal lending rate in effect at the date of the change.

The Group avails itself of the option granted by the standard to apply a simplified accounting regime to short-term contracts
for certain specific classes of assets (with a duration of no more than 12 months), to contracts where the individual underlying
asset is of low value (up to €5,000) and to contracts where the individual underlying asset is an intangible asset: for these
contracts, lease payments are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss as a balancing entry to short-term trade payables.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, property, plant, equipment and intangible assets with finite lives are analysed to assess
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If these indicators are present, the recoverable amount of the
assets concerned is estimated. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell, and its value
in use, represented by the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. In calculating value
in use, future cash flow estimates are discounted using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money, the period of the investment and the risks specific to the asset. The realisable value of assets that do not generate
separate cash flows is determined with reference to the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Regardless of any impairment indicator, the assets listed below are tested for impairment every year:

¢ intangible assets with indefinite useful life or that are not yet available; the impairment test can take place at any time during
the year, provided that it is performed at the same time in each of the following years;

* goodwill acquired in a business combination.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the net carrying amount of the asset, or the CGU
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. In particular, if the impairment loss regards goodwill and is higher than
the related carrying amount, the remaining amount is allocated to the assets included in the CGU to which the goodwill has
been allocated, in proportion to their carrying amount®'. Except in the case of goodwill, if the impairment indicators no longer
exist, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reinstated and the reversal recognised in profit or loss. The reversal must not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised and depreciation or
amortisation been charged.

250. The payments included in the initial measurement of the lease liability include:
e fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;
¢ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date (e.g. ISTAT indexes);
e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are, in contrast, not included in the initial measurement of the lease liability. These payments are
recognised as a cost in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the event or the condition giving rise to the obligation occurs.

251. If the amount of the impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the asset or CGU, in accordance with IAS 36, no liability is recognised, unless recognition of a
liability is required by an international accounting standard other than IAS 36.
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Investments

In the Poste Italiane Group’s consolidated financial statements, investments in companies over which the Group exerts signif-
icant influence (“associates”) and in joint ventures, are accounted for using the equity method. The investments in insignificant
subsidiaries (individually and in aggregate) are valued using the equity method. See note 2.8 — Basis of consolidation.

In Poste Italiane SpA's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost
(including any directly attributable incidental expenses), after adjustment for any impairments. Investments in subsidiaries and
associates are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Any impairment losses (or subsequent reversals of impairment losses) are recognised in the same way and to
the same extent described with regard to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the paragraph, “Impairment
of assets”.

Financial instruments

On initial recognition, financial assets and liabilities are classified at fair value based on the business purpose for which they
were acquired. The purchase and sale of financial instruments is recognised by category, either on the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset (the transaction date), or, in the case of insurance transactions and BancoPosta’s opera-
tions, at the settlement date??. Any changes in fair value between the transaction date and the settlement date are recognised
in the financial statements.

On the other hand, trade receivables are recognised at their transaction price, in accordance with IFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified in one of the following categories, based on the business model adopted

to manage them and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows:

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost
This category reflects financial assets held to collect the contractual cash flows (the held to collect or HTC business model)
representing solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). These assets are measured at amortised cost, that is the
value assigned to the financial asset or liability on initial recognition, net of any principal reimbursement, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation by using the effective interest rate method on the difference between the initial value and the value
at maturity, after deducting any impairment. The business model on which the classification of financial assets is based
permits the sale of such assets; if the sales are not occasional, and are not immaterial in terms of value, consistency with
the HTC business model should be assessed;

* Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
This category includes financial assets held both to collect the relevant contractual cash flows and for sale (the held to collect
and sell or HTC&S business model), with the contractual cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
These financial assets are measured at fair value and, until they are derecognised or reclassified, gains or losses from valu-
ation are recognised in other comprehensive income. Exceptions to this are gains and losses due to impairment and foreign
exchange gains and losses recognised in the profit or loss in the year in question. If the financial asset is derecognised, the
accumulated gains/(losses) recognised in OCI are recycled to profit or loss.
This category also includes equity instruments that would otherwise be recognised through profit or loss, for which the
irrevocable election was made to recognise changes in fair value through OCI (the FVTOCI option). This option entails the
recognition of dividends alone through profit or loss;

* Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
This category includes: (a) financial assets primarily held for trading; (b) those that qualify for designation at fair value through
profit or loss, exercising the fair value option; (c) financial assets that must be recognised at fair value through profit or loss;
(d) derivative instruments, with the exception of the effective portion of those designated as cash flow hedges. Financial
assets belonging to the category in question are measured at fair value and the related changes are recognised in profit or
loss. Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as assets or liabilities depending on whether
the fair value is positive or negative.; positive and negative fair values deriving from transactions with the same counterparty
are offset during the collateralisation phase, where contractually provided for.

252. This is possible for transactions carried out on organised markets (the “regular way”).
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The classification as “current” or “non-current” of financial assets measured at amortised cost and financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income depends on the contractual maturity of the instrument, since current assets
are those whose realisation is expected within twelve months of the reporting date. Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss are, on the other hand, classified as “current” if held for trading and are expected to be sold within twelve
months of the reporting date.

An expected credit loss (ECL) provision must be made for financial assets recognised at amortised cost and financial assets
at fair value through OCI, as follows: (i) specific provisions for doubtful receivables are made for expected losses on financial
assets measured at amortised cost; (i) expected losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehen-
sive income are recognised in profit or loss, with a contra entry in the fair value reserve in equity. The method utilised is the
“General impairment model”, whereby:

* if on the reporting date the credit risk of a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, a
12-month ECL is recognised (stage 1). Interest on the instrument is calculated on the gross carrying amount (amortised
cost inclusive of the ECL);

¢ if on the reporting date the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, a lifetime
ECL is recognised (stage 2). Interest on the instrument is calculated on the gross carrying amount (@amortised cost inclusive
of the ECL);

* if afinancial instrument is already impaired on initial recognition or shows objective evidence of impairment as at the report-
ing date, lifetime expected losses are recognised. Interest is recognised at amortised cost (stage 3), i.e. on the basis of the
exposure value — determined using the effective interest rate — adjusted for expected losses.

Detailed information on the inputs, assumptions and techniques for determining expected losses on financial assets is provid-
ed in Note 2.6 - Use of Estimates, to which reference is made for a full discussion.

Financial assets are derecognised when there is no longer a contractual right to receive cash flows from the investment or
when all the related risks and rewards and control have been substantially transferred. If the substantial transfer of risks and
benefits cannot be ascertained, financial assets are derecognised when no control is retained over them. Finally, assets sold
are derecognised if the contractual right to receive their cash flows is maintained. However, at the same time a contractual
obligation is assumed to pay said flows to a third party, without delay and only to the extent of those received.

In addition, for impaired financial assets, derecognition may take place following write-off thereof, following the acknowledge-
ment that there are no reasonable expectations of recovery (e.g. prescription).

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, trade payables and other payment obligations, are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. If there is a change in the expected cash flows and they can be reliably estimated, the value of
borrowings is recalculated to reflect the change on the basis of the present value of estimated future cash flows and the internal
rate of return initially applied. Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities, unless there is an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

When required by the applicable IFRS (e.g. in the case of derivative liabilities), or when the irrevocable fair value option is
exercised, financial liabilities are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. In this case, changes in fair value attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognised directly in equity, unless this treatment creates or enhances an accounting asymme-
try, whereby the residual amount of the changes in the fair value of liabilities is recognised through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished or when the obligation specified in the contract expires, is
cancelled or discharged.

With regard to hedge accounting transactions, as described above, as of 1 January 2024, the Poste Italiane Group adopts
the provisions of IFRS 9, in accordance with which, at the date the contract is entered into, derivative instruments are rec-
ognised at fair value and, if they do not meet the requirements for recognition as hedging instruments, changes in fair value
recognised after initial recognition are recognised separately in the income statement of the year.

If, however, the derivative instruments meet the requirements to be classified as hedging instruments, subsequent changes in
fair value follow the rules set out in IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments indicated below.
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For each derivative financial instrument that qualifies for recognition as a hedging instrument, its relationship to the hedged
item is documented. This documentation provides, among other things, the following information: indications of the risk man-
agement strategy and its objective, a qualitative description of the hedging relationship and identification of the hedged risk,
and a description of how the hedge effectiveness requirements will be assessed??. The fulfilment of the effectiveness criteria is
checked at the beginning of the hedging relationship, as well as on an ongoing basis at each reporting date or in the presence
of cases that may entail a significant change in the drivers affecting individual hedging relationships.

e Fair value hedge®*
When the hedge concerns assets or liabilities recognised in the financial statements, or concerns an unrecognised firm
commitment, or a component of such item, both the change in fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in fair
value of the hedged item are recognised in the income statement. The partial ineffectiveness of the hedge, equal to the
difference between the aforementioned changes, represents an expense or income separately recognised among the com-
ponents of the income statement of the period.

¢ Cash flow hedge®®

In the case of cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument recorded after the first recognition are
charged, limited to the effective portion, to a specific equity reserve whose movement is represented in Other components
of comprehensive income (Cash flow hedge reserve). The change in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable to the
ineffective portion of the hedge is instead immediately recorded in the Income Statement of the period considered.
Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to profit or loss in the period in which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
In particular, in the case of hedges associated with a highly probable forecast transaction (such as the purchase of fixed
income debt securities), the reserve is reclassified to profit or loss in the period or in the periods in which the asset or liabil-
ity, subsequently accounted for and connected to the aforementioned transaction, will affect profit or loss (for example, an
adjustment to the return on the security).

If, during the life of the derivative, the forecast hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the related gains and
losses accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve are immediately reclassified to profit or loss for the period. When a
hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the related gains
and losses accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve at that time remain in equity and are recognised in profit or loss at
the same time as the original underlying.

For a description of the methods used by the Poste Italiane Group and Poste Italiane SpA to assess compliance with hedging
effectiveness requirements, reference is made to “Note 4.8 - Hedging Operations” and “Note 5.8 - Hedging Operations” in the
consolidated and separate financial statements of Poste Italiane SpA, respectively.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a derivative included in a combined contract or hybrid instrument, also containing a non-derivative
contract or host contract, which originates all or part of the cash flows of the combined contract. Embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and recognised as a derivative when:

e the host contract is not a financial instrument measured at fair value recorded in the income statement;

* the economic risks and characteristics of the embedded derivative are not strictly correlated with those of the host contract;
* aseparate contract with the same terms and conditions of the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative.

Within the Group, contracts that may contain embedded derivatives are:

e contracts for the purchase of non-financial items entered into by PostePay SpA with clauses or options affecting the con-
tract price, for which, however, the embedded derivatives are not separable from the host contract;

* the convertible bond held by PostePay SpA, for which the embedded derivative component is not separated as the host
contract is a financial instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss.

253. The hedge effectiveness requirements that must be met at the inception of the hedging relationship and at each reporting date are as follows:
e the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item;
* the effect of credit risk must not predominate over changes in value resulting from the economic relationship;
e the hedge ratio used for hedge accounting purposes is the same as that used for risk management purposes.

254. Hedging of exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or a component of such items, that is attributable
to a particular risk and could affect the income statement.

255. Hedging of exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a component thereof, or to a highly
probable planned transaction that could affect the Income Statement.
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Repurchase agreements

Any securities received as part of a transaction entailing subsequent re-sale and the delivery of securities as part of a transaction
entailing their subsequent repurchase are not either recognised or derecognised in these financial statements. Consequently, in
the case of securities purchased under a resale agreement, the amount paid is recognised as an amount due from customers
or banks under Financial assets measured at amortised cost; in the case of securities sold under a repurchase agreement,
the liability is recognised as an amount due to banks or customers under Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. The
transactions described are subject to offsetting if, and only if, they are carried out with the same counterparty, have the same
maturity and offsetting is provided for in the contract.

Tax credits Law no. 77/2020

In order to identify the correct accounting treatment of the receivables purchased in reference to the Decreto Rilancio no.

34/2020 (later converted with Law no. 77 of 17 July 2020), since an accounting framework directly applicable to this case

cannot be identified and in compliance with the provisions of IAS 8, an accounting policy suitable for providing relevant and

reliable information aimed at ensuring a faithful representation of the financial, income and cash flow position and which reflects

the economic substance and not the mere form of the transaction was defined. Based on the analyses carried out and the

documents published by the main Italian supervisory bodies (Joint Document of the Bank of Italy, IVASS and CONSOB?%),

although the definition of financial activity in IAS 32 is not directly applicable to this case, an accounting model based on IFRS

9 was developed since:

e atinception, an asset as defined by the Conceptual Framework arises in the transferee’s financial statements;

* they may be used to offset a payable that is usually settled in cash (tax payables), and exchanged for other financial assets
on terms that may be potentially favourable to the entity;

* abusiness model can be identified (Hold to Collect, Hold to Collect and Sell or other business models).

At the date of purchase, these receivables are recognised at their fair value (coinciding with the price paid) and subsequently

measured at amortised cost (“Hold to Collect” business model), as they were acquired to be used to offset tax or social security
payables by Poste Italiane SpA, based on the provisions of the relevant regulations.

256. On 5 January 2021, the Bank of Italy, CONSOB and IVASS published Document No. 9 of the Coordination Table on the Application of IAS/IFRS “Accounting Treatment
of Tax Credits Associated with the “Cura ltalia” and “Relaunch” Law Decrees acquired as a result of disposal by direct beneficiaries or previous purchasers”.
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Classification of receivables and payables attributable to
BancoPosta and IMEL RFC

Receivables and payables attributable to BancoPosta RFC are treated as financial assets and liabilities if related to BancoPosta’s
typical deposit-taking and lending activities, or services provided under authority from customers. The related operating
expenses and income, if not settled or classifiable in accordance with Bank of Italy Circular 272 of 30 July 2008 — The Account
Matrix, are accounted for in trade receivables and payables.

Receivables and payables of IMEL RFC are considered to have the nature of financial assets and liabilities if they relate to the
characteristic activities of the Electronic Money Institutions, or to the services delegated by the customers. The related oper-
ating expenses and income, if not settled or classifiable in accordance with Bank of Italy Circular 217 of 5 August 1996 — The
Account Matrix, are accounted for in trade receivables and payables.

Own use exemption

The standards establishing the principles for the recognition and measurement of financial instruments are also applied to

derivative contracts to buy or sell non-financial items that are settled net in cash or in another financial instrument, with the

exception of contracts entered into, and that continue to be held, for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial

item in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements (the own use exemption). This exception

is applied in the recognition and measurement of forward purchase contracts for electricity and natural gas carried out by the

subsidiary PostePay SpA if the following conditions are met:

* the contract does not provide for the possibility of balancing purchase and sale transactions by offsetting in cash or by
means of financial instruments or exchange of financial instruments?®’;

e the contract is concluded and maintained to meet the needs of the purchase, sale or use of the goods;

e the contract is intended for that purpose from the moment it is signed;

 the contract provides for the delivery of goods?®.

When the above conditions are met, the contract for the purchase or sale of non-financial items is classified as a ‘normal con-
tract of purchase and sale’.

In order to be able to adopt the own-use exemption regime, the company PostePay SpA has implemented a structured con-
trol framework that provides for ex-ante and ongoing monitoring of the applicability conditions set forth in the aforementioned
accounting standard.

Taxes

Current income tax expense is based on the best estimate of taxable profit for the period and the related regulations, applying
the rates in force. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, using tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
assets are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the tempo-
rary differences derive from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group or it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. In accordance with IAS 12, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised on goodwill deriving from a business combination.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of taxes charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the tax effect is recognised directly in equity. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they

257. In the event that there is a net cash flow settlement clause, it is necessary to verify that this clause is not applied in substance.

258. If it is the practice for PostePay SpA to settle the transaction net on the basis of cash or other financial instruments, or to receive the contracted goods and then resell them
in the short term, PostePay SpA, and consequently the Group, will not be able to apply the own use exemption, and will have to account for the contract as a derivative
financial instrument.
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are applied by the same tax authority to the same taxpaying entity, which has the legally exercisable right to offset the amounts
recognised, and the entity has the intention of exercising this right. As a result, tax liabilities accruing in interim periods that are
shorter than the tax year are not offset against related assets deriving from withholding tax or advances paid.

The Group’s taxation and accounting standards take account of the effects of Poste Italiane SpA's participation in the national
tax consolidation scheme, for which the option has been exercised in accordance with the law, together with the following
subsidiaries: Poste Vita SpA, SDA Express Courier SpA, Poste Air Cargo Srl, Postel SpA, Europa Gestioni Immobiliari SpA,
Poste Welfare Servizi Srl, Poste Assicura SpA, BancoPostaFondi SpA SGR, PostePay SpA, Poste Insurance Broker Srl, MLK
Deliveries SpA, Indabox Srl, Nexive Network Srl, LIS Holding SpA, LIS PAY SpA, Address Software Srl, Consorzio Servizi Scpa,
Logos Srl, Plurima SpA, Postego SpA, MLK Fresh Srl, Poste Logistics SpA, Sourcesense SpA, Bridge Technologies Srl and
Agile Lab Srl. The tax consolidation arrangement is governed by Group regulations based on the principles of neutrality and
equality of treatment, which are intended to ensure that the companies included in the tax consolidation are in no way penal-
ised as a result. Following adoption of the tax consolidation arrangement, the Parent Company’s tax expense is determined at
consolidated level on the basis of the tax expense or tax losses for the period for each company included in the consolidation,
taking account of any withholding tax or advances paid. Poste Italiane SpA posts its IRES tax expense to income taxes for
the period, after adjustments to take account of the positive or negative impact of tax consolidation adjustments. Should the
reductions or increases in tax expense deriving from such adjustments be attributable to the companies included in the tax
consolidation, Poste Italiane SpA attributes such reductions or increases in tax expense to the companies in question. The
economic benefits deriving from the offset of tax losses transferred to the consolidating entity by the companies participating in
the tax consolidation arrangement are recognised in full by Poste Italiane SpA. Other taxes not related to income are included
in “Other operating costs”.

Furthermore, the information required by the reference standard (IAS 12 - Income Taxes) on the provisions of the OECD
(Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development) Pillar Two, introduced into the European Union regulatory frame-
work with EU Directive 2022/2523 of the Council of 14 December 2022, in turn implemented in Italy with Legislative Decree
209 of 27 December 2023 (hereinafter also referred to as the “Decree”), is provided below. The objective of international tax
reform is to ensure a minimum level of taxation, at the rate of 15%, of multinational corporations in each jurisdiction in which
they operate.

During the year under review, the Poste Italiane Group continued, with the support of external experts, to work on the imple-
mentation of procedures aimed at managing the fulfilments relating to both the application phase of the simplified transitional
regimes of an optional and temporary nature that have been envisaged as part of the OECD work on the global minimum tax
(Transitional CbCR Safe harbours)**, as well as of the “steady-state” legislation (GloBE rules).

With regard to the year covered by these disclosures, the Poste Italiane Group has applied the exception to the recognition and
disclosure of deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to Pillar Il income taxes, as permitted by the aforementioned accounting
standard.

Furthermore, in order to assess the impact of the new regulations for 2024, Transitional CbCR Safe harbours tests were per-
formed for each of the jurisdictions in which the Poste Italiane Group operates (i.e. Italy, the UK, Hong Kong and China) using
the reporting package data for the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The above analysis shows that at least one of the tests under the Transitional CoCR Safe Harbour has been passed for each
jurisdiction®® in which the Group operates, therefore no additional tax is currently due.

259. The general transitional regimes (Transitional Safe Harbour) provide for the reduction of any supplementary tax due for these jurisdictions to zero for the first three tax
periods from the implementation of the legislation (2024-2026).
260. With regard to Italy, the test is passed for both group companies and the jointly controlled entity.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of interchangeable items and goods for resale is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. In the case of non-interchangeable items, cost is measured on the basis
of the specific cost of the item at the time of purchase. The value of the inventories is adjusted, if necessary, by provisions for
obsolete or slow-moving stock. When the circumstances that previously led to recognition of the above provisions no longer
exist, or when there is a clear indication of an increase in the net realisable value, the provisions are fully or partly reversed, so
that the new carrying amount is the lower of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting period. Assets are not,
however, recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has incurred an expense that, based on the best
information available at the date of preparation of the financial statements, is deemed unlikely to generate economic benefits
for the Group after the end of the reporting period.

In the case of properties held for sale?®’, if present, cost is represented by the fair value of each asset at the date of acquisition,
plus any directly attributable transaction costs, whilst the net realisable value is based on the estimated sale price under normal
market conditions, less direct costs to sell.

Long-term contract work is measured using the percentage of completion method, using cost to cost accounting®®.

Environmental certificates not used in the reporting period are recognised in inventories.

Environmental Certificates

Within the Poste Italiane Group, environmental certificates refer to:

¢ Emission allowances held by the company Poste Air Cargo Srl as an incentive to reduce greenhouse gas emissions®®® with
the aim of achieving an improvement in technologies used in energy production and industrial processes,

e Guarantees of origin and carbon credits held by the company PostePay SpA; the former aimed at certifying the origin from
renewable sources of the electricity sold; the latter aimed at fully offsetting CO, emissions from natural gas consumption.

Emission quotas

The European Emissions Trading System, which works on the basis of the cap and trade principle, has capped annual green-
house gas emissions at European level. This corresponds to the issue, free of charge, of a set number of emission allowances by
the competent national authorities. During the year, depending on the effective volume of greenhouse gas emissions produced
with respect to the above cap, each company has the option of selling or purchasing emission allowances on the market.

The issue, free of charge, of emission allowances involves a commitment to produce, in the relevant year, a quantity of green-
house gas emissions in proportion to the emission allowances received: this commitment is commensurate with the market
value of the emission allowances at the time of allocation. At the end of the year, the commitment is reduced or derecognised in
proportion to the greenhouse gas emissions effectively produced and any residual value is reported in the section, “Additional
information”, in the Annual Report.

261. These are properties held by EGI SpA and not accounted for in “Investment property” as they were purchased for sale or subsequently reclassified as held for sale.

262. This method is based on the ratio of costs incurred as of a given date divided by the estimated total project cost. The resulting percentage is then applied to estimated
total revenue, obtaining the value to be attributed to the contract work completed and accrued revenue at the given date.

263. Introduced into the Italian and European regulatory system by the Kyoto Protocol.
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Guarantees of Origin and Carbon Credits

Guarantees of Origin are certifications attesting to the renewable origin of the sources used by IGO (Plants Guarantee of Origin)
classified plants. For each MWh of renewable electricity fed into the grid by IGO-qualified plants, the GSE (Gestore Servizi
Energetici) issues a GO certificate to the producer, in accordance with EU Directive 2018/2001. As of 1 January 2013, electric-
ity sales companies are obliged to procure a quantity of GO certificates equal to the electricity sold as renewable. To do this,
each company is required, by 31 March of the year following the year in which electricity was supplied to end customers, to
cancel a quantity of GO equal to the electricity sold as renewable.

Carbon credits, on the other hand, represent a negotiable security that allows a company or organisation to offset the carbon
dioxide (CO,) emitted in the course of its activities (in the case of PostePay SpA, the CO, emissions of the gas marketed to
end customers), by adhering to environmental sustainability projects aimed at pursuing a path of ecological transition and
decarbonisation.

Offsetting of CO, emissions takes place through the acquisition of carbon credits for a value equivalent to the CO, emissions
resulting from the gas consumption of the Company’s end customers. Each carbon credit represents the offsetting of one
tonne of CO,,.

The accounting treatment of emission allowances and, insofar as they are similar, guarantees of origin and carbon credits, in
the absence of specific indications within the IAS/IFRS framework, is carried out in accordance with the provisions of OIC 8
“Greenhouse Gas Emission Allowances”, as well as the reference best practice for the main IAS adopters. The purchase for
consideration or the sales of environmental certificates are recognised in the Income Statement of the financial year in which
they occur. At the end of the year, any surpluses arising from purchases for consideration are recognised in the closing inven-
tories at the lower of cost and net realisable value®®. In the event of a shortfall, the resulting charge and related liability are
accounted for at the end of the year at fair value.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are recognised using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is equal to the sum of the fair values, at the acquisition date, of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred, and any interest
issued by the acquirer. Costs directly attributable to the transaction are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss.

The amount transferred is allocated by recognising the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree at
the related fair values at the acquisition date.

Any positive difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its recoverable value is recognised as goodwill and

recorded under intangible assets:

* the sum of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value at the acquisition date, the amount of any non-controlling
interest, and, in the case of business combinations achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s pre-
viously held equity interest in the acquiree; and

* the net value of the amounts, at the acquisition date, of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed that are identifiable in
the acquiree measured at fair value.

In the event of a negative difference, this surplus represents the profit from a purchase on favourable terms and is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

If at the time of preparing the financial statements the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities arising from the
transaction can only be determined provisionally, the business combination is recognised using these provisional values. Any

adjustments resulting from the completion of the valuation process are recognised retrospectively within twelve months of the
acquisition date.

264. Any surplus emission allowances allocated free of charge are not accounted for in closing inventory.
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In the case of a business combination achieved in stages, the interests previously held in the acquiree are remeasured at fair
value at the new acquisition date and any difference (positive or negative) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss or in
the statement of comprehensive income if appropriate.

Cash and deposits attributable to BancoPosta

Cash and securities held at post offices, and bank deposits attributable to the operations of BancoPosta RFC, are accounted
for separately from cash and cash equivalents as they derive from deposits subject to investment restrictions, or from advances
from the Italian Treasury to ensure that post offices can operate. This cash may only be used in settlement of these obligations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents refer to cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, amounts that at 31 December 2024 the
Parent Company has temporarily deposited with the MEF and other highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities
of ninety days or less. Current account overdrafts are accounted for in current liabilities.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets, disposal groups and discontinued operations are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value, less costs to sell.

When it is highly probable that the carrying amount of a non-current asset, or a disposal group, will be recovered, in its present
condition, principally through a sale transaction or other form of disposal, rather than through continuing use, and the trans-
action is likely to take place in the short term, the asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale or as a discontinuing
operation in the statement of financial position. The transaction is deemed to be highly probable, when the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, or, when so authorised, the board of directors of a subsidiary, has committed to a plan to sell the asset
(or disposal group), and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated. Sale transactions
include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial substance.

Equity

Share capital

Share capital is represented by Poste ltaliane SpA's subscribed and paid-up capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares are recognised as a reduction of the share capital, net of any deferred tax effect.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are recognised at cost and deducted from shareholders’ equity. The effects of any subsequent sales are rec-
ognised in equity.
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Hybrid bonds

Perpetual hybrid subordinated bonds are classified in the financial statements under comment as equity instruments, taking
into account the circumstance that the issuing Company has the unconditional right to defer, until the date of its dissolution
or liquidation, the repayment of the capital and the payment of coupons. Therefore, the amount received from the subscribers
of these instruments, net of the related issue costs, is recognised as an increase in Group shareholders’ equity; conversely,
repayments of principal and payments of coupons due (at the time the related contractual obligation arises) are recognised as
a decrease in shareholders’ equity.

Reserves

Reserves include capital and revenue reserves. They include, among others, the Reserve for BancoPosta RFC that consti-
tutes the initial and subsequent allocations of Bancoposta RFC legally independent, the Parent Company’s legal reserve, the
fair value reserve relating to items accounted for using this method with a balancing entry in Equity, and the cash flow hedge
reserve relating to the recognition of the effective portion of hedges outstanding at the reporting date, the Reserve for insurance
contracts issued and outward reinsurance held, which includes the reversal of the results achieved on financial assets meas-
ured at fair value with a balancing entry in shareholders’ equity following the adoption of the OCI option provided for by IFRS
17, as well as the Translation reserve, which includes the exchange rate differences arising from the translation, in the presenta-
tion currency, of the financial statements of consolidated companies that operate in a functional currency other than the Euro.

Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses)

This relates to the portion of profit for the period and for previous periods which has not been distributed or taken to reserves or
used to cover losses and actuarial gains and losses deriving from the calculation of the liability for employee termination bene-
fits, and transfers from other equity reserves, when they have been released from the restrictions to which they were subjected.
In the consolidated financial statements, the item also includes any effects arising from transactions with minority shareholders.

Insurance Contracts and Assets for outward reinsurance

They concern insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation elements issued by the Companies
belonging to the Poste Vita Group, as well as the reinsurance contracts held by them. As regards contracts issued by other
companies belonging to the Group other than insurance companies, no elements have been identified that can be traced back
to the definition of insurance contract, or, even though they fall within this definition, the Group has opted to continue to apply
IFRS 15 and/or IFRS 9 as permitted by IFRS 17.

The process of aggregating insurance contracts provides for an initial distinction between Life and P&C businesses and sub-
sequently a distinction into different Portfolios of contracts and different Units of Account. The Portfolios include contracts with
similar contractual and risk characteristics that are managed in a unitary manner. With regard to the Life business, groups of
contracts are aggregated by product type (e.g. Pure Separately Managed Accounts, Multi-class, Temporary Death Benefits,
etc.), while for the P&C business, the level of aggregation coincides with the lines of business (e.g. those defined for Solvency
Il reporting); in some cases they are further subdivided in order to comply with the characteristics of specific products. For
business related to reinsurance contracts held, the Unit of Account is equivalent to the individual treaty with the counterparty.

The Contract portfolios can be further disaggregated according to the underwriting year of the policies (cohorts)?®® and the level
of profitability. For this purpose, an onerousness test of the products is carried out to divide the Units of Account into:

o profitable;

e onerous;

* that at the time of initial recognition do not have a high probability of becoming onerous.

265. For Separately Managed Accounts and Multi-class insurance products, the exemption has been implemented in the application of annual cohorts permitted by Regulation
(EU) no. 2021/2036.
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The following describes the process for defining the onerousness test according to the relevant business:

» Life business: for contracts issued by Poste Vita SpA, the test is performed at the product level in the design phase of the
same (ex ante) exclusively for new products, determining the estimated future flows of fulfilment at the date. For contracts
issued by Net Insurance Life SpA, on the other hand, the test is carried out on individual tariffs. The analysis is repeated in
the event of significant events that may affect the costliness of the product in the first year of life;

e P&C business: for contracts issued by the Company Poste Assicura SpA, the test is performed on the basis of the Combined
Ratio®® at the time of the initial recognition of the group of contracts by defining the onerousness on a permanent basis
until the maturity of the policies. For contracts issued by Net Insurance SpA, the test takes into account estimated future
fulfilment flows at the date and is performed at the contract group level according to business type.

Groups of insurance contracts are recognised at the date of initial recognition. The Poste Italiane Group has defined in detail
which, for each type of business and its underlying products, is the date that identifies the start of the contractual relation-
ship. These dates (e.g. effective date, renewal date, accession date, etc.) were identified according to the specificities of the
products issued.

Measurement models

Groups of insurance contracts with at least one of the following characteristics are measured using the Premium Allocation

Approach (PAA) method?®7:

e One-year Duration;

e Multi-Year Duration and belonging to the Collective Business (Contract Groups = Collective);

e Multi-Year Duration and belonging to a Portfolio where the weight of the Multi-year Business is less than or equal to 5% in
the last 3 years.

With reference to the Variable Fee Approach (VFA)?%¢, adopted exclusively for Life business, the following types of products are
considered eligible for the model:

* With Profit Participating (separately managed account);

e Unit-linked standalone insurance;

e Hybrid products with investment components (Multi-class).

The PAA model is applied to P&C business, with the exception of the CPI products?®®, which are measured through the adop-
tion of the Building Block Approach (BBA) or General Model?”® as they do not meet the conditions for the application of the
simplified model. The BBA is also adopted for products belonging to the Life business for which the VFA model does not apply.

Elements for determining future fulfilment flows

In application of the BBA and VFA models, future cash flows associated with insurance contracts are estimated by taking into
account the so-called “contract boundary”, in order to identify whether a particular contractual option should be included in
the cash flow projection as soon as the contract is issued or whether the exercise of that option would result in the recognition
of a new group of contracts. Contract boundary identification techniques have been borrowed from the Solvency Il context?™,
except in the case of P&C business contracts with tacit renewal that were no longer terminable at the valuation date, which
define the generation of a new group of contracts and, therefore, a new cohort. In the Life business, pure risk policies, cases
of conversion into annuities, automatic maturity deferrals and additional payouts can generate a new fulfilment cash flow; while
in the P&C business, additional considerations can be made about product repricing clauses, the presence of variable sums
insured and cases of surrender with return of unearned premium.

266. Ratio of claims and expenses incurred to premium volume, also taking into account the Adjustment for non-financial risk.

267. Optional and alternative model to the general model, is applicable to contracts characterised by a coverage period of no more than one year, as well as to groups of
contracts for which the company considers that simplification linked to the model would not lead to a significantly different result from that obtained with the general model
(for example, absence of variability of cash flows associated with the group of contracts).

268. Mandatory measurement model for contracts with direct participation features, such as separately managed accounts and unit-linked products.

269. Credit Protection Insurance: is a special multi-risk insurance contract that seeks to protect the insured against a series of events that may occur during the term of a loan
(mortgage, personal loan or other form of credit), thus preventing adverse situations from impairing its regular repayment capacity.

270. A general model for measuring insurance contracts, called the Building Block Approach - BBA, involves the definition of the financial flows associated with the insurance
contract, consisting of cash inflows and outflows; an adjustment for the time value of money and the financial risks associated with these flows; and an adjustment for non-
financial risk (Risk adjustment). The final result of the sum of the preceding components, if positive, determines the Contractual Service Margin (CSM) that will be issued over
the life of the insurance contract according to the so-called Coverage Unit, while if negative the Loss Component, recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

271. Legal references “Eiopa Guidelines on Contract Boundaries - Consolidated Version” of 31 January 2023 and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35 of 10
October 2014, Article 18 “Contract Boundaries”.
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All costs directly attributable to the management of insurance contracts, including costs incurred in the acquisition of con-
tracts, are also taken into account in the construction of the fulfilment cash flows. With particular reference to acquisition costs,
the costs incurred internally for placement through the Poste Italiane network, placement commissions paid to the network
external to the Group (mainly for the Net Insurance and Net Insurance Life companies), rappels®”? and other direct and indirect
acquisition costs are considered directly attributable to insurance contracts.

Adjustment for non-financial risk

When assessing insurance contracts, it is necessary to consider the Risk Adjustment component, i.e. the remuneration that the
Companies of the Poste Italiane Group require to assume risks of a non-financial nature. To determine the Adjustment for non-fi-
nancial risk, the Poste Italiane Group has decided to use the percentile metric. According to this approach, the Adjustment for
non-financial risk represents the potential loss in relation to the obligations assumed towards the policyholders (Insurance liabil-
ities) that the Companies would incur, at a given level of probability (percentile level), to cover the insurance risks assumed, thus
reflecting the risk appetite of the Companies themselves. This element is calculated separately for Life and P&C business. The
confidence level identified to quantify the Adjustment for non-financial risk is 70% for both P&C and Life business.

In order to determine the amount of the Adjustment for non-financial risk, among other elements, the Solvency Il valuation
framework is taken into account, considering the same scope of underlying risks. For details of the risks considered, see
Section “2.6 - Use of estimates - Insurance liabilities”.

The Adjustment for non-financial risk may change as a result of changes in the risks to which the Group is exposed. These
effects may have an impact on the statement of financial position if they relate to future services, affecting the total value of the
Contractual Service Margin, and on the statement of profit or loss through the period release of this component, which occurs
on the basis of a defined coverage unit.

Discount rate

For the purposes of determining the discount rate to be used for discounting future cash flows, the Poste Italiane Group adopts
a “bottom-up approach” for the derivation of discount curves borrowed from Solvency I, in which the reference Basic Risk Free
Curve is based on the Risk Free Rate curve provided by EIOPA.

The Basic Risk Free curve, depending on the specific business, may be adjusted to take into account specific llliquidity
Premiums (a component representing the level of liquidity of the counterparty) calibrated to portfolios or at Company level.

Please refer to section “2.6 - Use of estimates - Insurance liabilities” for detailed information on the discount curves used per
individual portfolio.

Accounting policy under IFRS 17

The choices made by the Group in applying the provisions of the standard are summarised below:

* Risk mitigation: the Poste Group does not plan to adopt risk mitigation, i.e., the option not to recognise changes in the CSM
to account for some or all of the changes in the time effect of money and non-financial risk;

e OCI Option: for insurance contracts with direct participation elements for which the underlying elements are owned, the
Group opts to disaggregate the finance income or expenses into Profit for the Period and Other Comprehensive Income,
based on the results of IFRS 9, which defines the valuation of the underlying elements. The Poste Italiane Group also pro-
vides that, for contracts measured using the VFA model, the fair value income generated by the underlying assets measured
under IFRS 9, relating to finance income from separately managed assets, commissions and technical interest attributable
to unit-linked policies, is passed on to policyholders based on the percentage weight of the Mathematical Provisions at the
date (mirroring). The value of the returns generated by the assets related to the insurance liabilities is deducted from the
profit retained by the Group (over-coverage) and then allocated to the individual Units of Account;

272. Additional remuneration over and above the commission paid to intermediaries (agents and brokers) on the achievement of predetermined objectives (production,
technical, etc.).
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¢ Exception to the use of annual cohorts®’3: The Poste Italiane Group adopts the exemption option?”#, limited to the portfolios
pertaining to the Line of Business “With Profit Participating” and the hybrid products with separately managed components
of Poste Vita. These contracts will therefore not be divided into annual cohorts, but will be managed together due to the
mutualisation effect of returns?®’®, typical of separately managed accounts. The exception is not applicable for P&C business;

* Method of presentation of the result of the outward reinsurance business: The Group has chosen a net presentation for the
reinsurance result.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recorded to cover losses that are either probable or certain to be incurred, for which,
however, there is an uncertainty as to the amount or as to the date on which they will occur. Provisions for risks and charges
are made when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are measured on the basis of management’s best
estimate of the use of resources required to settle the obligation. The value of the liability is discounted, where the time effect of
money is relevant, at a rate that reflects current market values and takes into account the risks specific to the liability. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the best estimate of the expected charge to meet existing
obligations at the reporting date. Any effect of the passage of time and the effect of changes in interest rates are shown in the
statement of profit or loss. With regard to the risks for which the occurrence of a liability is only possible, specific information is
provided without making any provision. In those rare cases in which disclosure of some or all of the information regarding the
risks in question could seriously prejudice the Group’s position in a dispute or in ongoing negotiations with third parties, the
Group exercises the option granted by the relevant accounting standards to provide limited disclosure.

Employee benefits

The so-called Short-term employee benefits are those that will be fully paid within twelve months of the end of the year in
which the employee provided their services. Such benefits include wages, salaries, social security contributions, holiday pay
and sick pay.

The undiscounted value of short-term employee benefits to be paid to employees in consideration of employment services
provided over the relevant period is accrued as personnel expenses.

The so-called Post-employment benefits are divided into two types:

¢ Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans include severance indemnities due to employees pursuant to Article 2120 of the Civil Code limited to
the portions of severance indemnities accrued in the company up to 31 December 20086, for Group companies with at least
50 employees, as well as the portions of severance indemnities accrued during the period in the case of Group companies
with less than 50 employees, which continue to increase the value of the accumulated liability;
Under these plans, given that the amount of the benefit to be paid is only quantifiable following the termination of employ-
ment, the related effects on profit or loss or the financial position are recognised on the basis of actuarial calculations. In
particular, the liability to be paid on cessation of employment is calculated using the projected unit credit method and then
discounted to recognise the time value of money prior to the liability being settled. The liability recognised in the financial
statements is based on calculations performed by independent actuaries. The calculation takes into account accrued
termination benefits for services already rendered and is based on actuarial assumptions described in Note “2.6 - Use of
Estimates - TFR”, to which reference should be made. Actuarial gains and losses at the end of each reporting period, based

273. Cohort means the division of contracts according to the year of signing.

274. During the endorsement of the final version of the standard, an exemption from the application of the annual cohorts was envisaged deriving from the fact that in insurance
practice the rules for revaluation of insurance liabilities are a function of the returns on the financial assets related to them, calculated through a common management
of these assets and therefore not differentiated according to the specific sub-portfolios included in a specific separately managed account or between years of product
generation. The presence of cohorts generates complexities in terms of quantifying the “mutualisation effect” arising from the inclusion of different Units of Account (new
production) in a pool of Units of Account pertaining to pre-existing portfolios, as well as complexities in terms of allocation of return on assets to specific Units of Account
that could generate distorting effects in IFRS 17 results.

275. Intergenerational mutuality is generated on those products of long duration that provide for the entry of policyholders even at different times in the life of the product.
In these cases, the mutualisation effect makes it possible to offset losses and gains from portfolio management between the different generations of policyholders
participating in the product.
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on the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the present value of the Group’s obligations at the end of
the period, due to changes in the actuarial assumptions, are recognised directly in Other comprehensive income.

* Defined contribution plans
TFR falls within the scope of defined contribution plans provided the benefits vested subsequent to 1 January 2007 and
were paid into a Supplementary Pension Fund or a Treasury Fund at INPS. Contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred, based on their nominal value.

The so-called Termination benefits payable to employees are recognised as a liability when the entity gives a binding
commitment, also on the basis of consolidated relationships and mutual undertakings with union representatives, to terminate
the employment of an employee, or group of employees, prior to the normal retirement date or, alternatively, an employee or
group of employees accepts an offer of benefits in consideration of a termination of employment. Termination benefits payable
to employees are immediately recognised as personnel expenses.

Other long-term employment benefits consist of benefits not payable within twelve months of the end of the reporting
period during which the employees provided their services. The net change in the value of any of the components of the liability
during the reporting period is recognised in full in profit or loss.

Share-based payments

Share-based payment transactions may be settled in cash, with equity instruments, or with other financial instruments. Goods
or services received or acquired through a share-based payment transaction are recognised at their fair value.

In the case of cash-settled share-based payment transactions:

* aliability is recognised as a matching entry at cost;

 if the fair value of the goods or services received or acquired cannot be reliably determined, this value must be estimated
indirectly on the basis of the fair value of the liability;

* the fair value of the liability must be remeasured at the end of each reporting period, recognising any changes in fair value
in profit or loss for the period.

In the case of equity-settled share-based payment transactions:
e anincrease in shareholders’ equity is recorded as a matching entry at cost;
« if the fair value of the goods or services received or acquired cannot be reliably determined, this value must be estimated

indirectly on the basis of the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date;

In the case of employee benefits, the expense is recognised in personnel expenses over the period in which the employee
renders the relevant service.

Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for the transfer of promised goods
and/or services to the customer (transaction price).
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The main types of revenue of the Poste Italiane Group are described below, together with an indication of the timing of the

performance obligation?’s:

* Revenue from mail, parcels and other refers to services provided to customers through the retail and business channels;
revenue generated through the retail channel is recognised at a point in time given the number of transactions handled
through the various sales channels (post offices, call centres and online) and measured on the basis of the rates applied;
revenue generated through the business channel is generally earned as a result of annual or multi-annual contracts and is
recognised over time using the output method determined on the basis of shipments requested and handled. These con-
tracts include elements of variable consideration (primarily volume discounts and penalties linked to the quality of service
provided) estimated using the expected value method and recognised as a reduction from revenue.

* Revenue from financial services refers to:

— revenue from placement and brokerage: these are recognised over time and measured on the basis of the volumes
placed, quantified on the basis of commercial agreements with financial institutions. In terms of payment for the col-
lection of postal savings, the agreement entered into with Cassa Depositi e Prestiti envisages payment of a variable
consideration on achieving certain levels of inflows, determined on the basis of the volume of inflows and expected
redemptions; certain commercial agreements, entered into with leading financial partners for the placement of finan-
cial products, envisage the return of placement fees in the event of early termination or surrender by the customer;

— revenue from current account and related services: these are recognised over time, measured on the basis of the
service rendered (including the related services, e.g. bank transfers, securities deposits, etc.) and quantified on the
pbasis of the contract terms and conditions offered to the customer;

— revenue from commissions on payment of bills by payment slip: these are recognised at a point in time given the
number of transactions handled by post offices and quantified on the basis of the terms and conditions in the con-
tract of sale.

* Revenue from Postepay services refers to:

— e-money, collection and payment services relating to PostePay mainly for the issuing of Postepay cards and debit
cards detected at a point in time at the time of issuance and for the related services detected over time based on
the use of the service by the customer. These services include interchange fees recognised by international circuits
on payment transactions with cards detected over time. The item includes commissions for acquiring services ren-
dered to merchants recognised over time due to the use of the service, F23 and F24 proxy acceptance services
recognised over time due to the level of service rendered, and PagoPA collection services recognised at a point in
time when the service is provided. Services provided by the LIS Group contribute to this item, which mainly include
collection and payment services (including bill collection services) provided by LIS Pay and recognised at a point in
time upon collection, and revenue from the processing of telephone top-ups and network fees and services paid by
points of sale to LIS Holding recognised over time due to the use of the service;

— mobile and fixed network telephony services, which include: revenue from “standard TLC services offers” record-
ed over time on the basis of the output method based on the traffic offered (voice, SMS and data) to the customer;
revenue relating to the sale of fixed telephony offers recorded over time on the basis of the output method based on
the fee charged to the customer; revenue relating to fees for the activation of SIM cards and fixed telephony offers,
recorded at a point in time when the service is provided;

— services related to the supply of electricity and methane gas, the revenue from which is recognised at the time of
supply to the end customer due to the use of the service (over time). With regard to the sale of electricity, the ser-
vices offered include, in addition to the commodity component, also the transport, metering and system charges
components; with regard to the sale of natural gas, these services include, in addition to the commodity component,
also the provision of transport services.

For the purposes of revenue recognition, the so-called variable components of the consideration are identified and quantified
(discounts, rebates, price concessions, incentives, penalties and other similar) to include them to supplement or adjust the
transaction price. Among the variable components of the fee, penalties (to be paid to the customer in the event of failure to
achieve pre-established service levels) are of particular importance, and are recognised by the Group as a direct decrease in
revenue.

276. Performance obligations can be defined as the explicit or implicit promise to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer. Revenue is recognised when or as the
entity fulfils the performance obligation, that is upon delivery of the good or service to the customer and this can be:

e “at a point in time”: in the case of obligations fulfilled at a point in time, revenue is recognised only as control over the good or service is passed to the customer. In
that respect, consideration is given not only to the significant exposure to the risks and benefits related to the good or service but also physical possession, customer’s
acceptance, the existence of legal rights, etc.;

* “over time”: in the case of obligations fulfilled over time, the measurement and recognition of revenue reflect, virtually, the progress of the customer’s satisfaction. An
appropriate approach is defined to measure progress of the performance obligation (the output method).
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Revenue from activities carried out in favour of or on behalf of the state is recognised on the basis of the amount effectively
accrued, with reference to the laws and agreements in force, taking account, in any event, of the provisions contained in
legislation regarding the public finances. The return on the current account deposits held by the MEF is determined using the
effective interest method and is recognised as revenue from financial services. A similar classification is adopted for the pro-
ceeds of Euro area government securities, in which the funds collected on current accounts from private customers and tax
credits under Law no. 77/2020 are employed.

The Poste ltaliane Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of good and/or service provided,
revenue is therefore disaggregated in line with the operating segments identified within the company; for quantitative details
on the distinction between revenue from contracts with customers recognised at a specific time or over time, see section “4.3
Notes to the Income Statement”.

Government grants

Receivables from government grants are recognised once they have been formally allocated to the Group by the public entity
concerned and only if, based on the information available at the end of the year, there is reasonable assurance that the project
to which the grant relates will be effectively carried out and completed in accordance with the conditions attached to the grant.
Government grants are recognised in the Income Statement under Other operating income as follows: operating grants in
proportion to the costs actually incurred for the project and accounted for and approved to the public entity; grants related to
property, plant and equipment are recognised in proportion to the depreciation charged on the assets acquired and used to
carry out the project.

Finance income and costs

Finance income and costs are recognised on an accruals basis based on the effective interest method, i.e. using an interest
rate that discounts all cash flows relating to a given transaction in the same way.

Dividends are recognised as finance income when the right to receive payment is established, which generally corresponds with
approval of the distribution by the Shareholders Meeting of the investee company. Otherwise, dividends from subsidiaries are
accounted for as “Other operating income”.

Transactions in currencies other than the euro are translated to euro using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation

at closing exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the euro are recognised in
profit or loss.

Earnings per share
In the Poste Italiane Group’s consolidated financial statements, earnings per share is determined as follows:

* Basic: basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit for the year by the weighted average number of
Poste Italiane SpA's ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Diluted: At the date of preparation of these financial statements no financial instruments have been issued which have poten-
tially dilutive characteristics?®’”.

277. Diluted earnings per share are calculated by taking into account the potentially dilutive effect of all instruments which can be converted into ordinary shares issued by the
Parent Company. The calculation is based on the ratio of profit attributable to the Parent Company, adjusted to take account of any costs or income deriving from the
conversion, net of any tax effect, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, assuming conversion of all convertible securities.
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Related parties

Related parties within the Group refer to Poste Italiane SpA's direct and indirect subsidiaries and associates. Related parties
external to the Group include the MEF and its direct or indirect subsidiaries and associates. The Group’s key management
personnel are also classified as related parties, as are funds providing post-employment benefits to the Group’s employees
and the related entities. The state and Public Administration entities other than the MEF are not classified as related parties.
Related party transactions do not include those deriving from financial assets and liabilities represented by instruments traded
on organised markets.

2.6 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions that can have a significant effect on the
final values indicated in the financial statements and in the disclosure provided. The preparation of these estimates involves
the use of available information and the adoption of subjective assessments, also based on historical experience, used for the
formulation of reasonable assumptions for the recognition of operating events. Estimates and assumptions are periodically
reviewed and the impact of any changes is reflected in the financial statements for the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision only influences the current period, or also in future periods if the revision influences both current and future periods.
Due to their nature, the estimates and assumptions used may vary from year to year and, therefore, it cannot be excluded that
in subsequent years, the values recorded in these Financial Statements may also vary significantly as a result of changes in the
subjective valuations used.

The accounting treatments that require greater subjectivity in the preparation of estimates are described below, also taking into
account the particularity of the reference macroeconomic context experienced in recent years (in line with ESMA and CONSOB
requests?’).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The main factors in the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers include elements of variable consideration, par-
ticularly penalties (other than those related to compensation for damages). Elements of variable consideration are identified at
the inception of the contract and estimated as of every close of the accounts for the entire contract term, to take into account
new circumstances and changes in the circumstances already considered for the previous estimations. Elements of variable
consideration include refund liabilities.

In the business relating to the sale of electricity and gas, revenue includes estimates of both turnover and allocation for supplies
made to customers between the date of the last billing period and the end of the reporting year. Both estimation components
are based on the application of internally developed algorithms that are consistent with the guidelines of the sector authority
and that take into account the estimated volumes consumed by customers (considering the historical billing information). As
required by the relevant regulations, the allocation of revenue is subject to adjustment until the fifth subsequent year.

Provisions for risks and charges

The Group makes provisions for probable liabilities deriving from disputes with staff, suppliers, and third parties and, in general,
for liabilities deriving from present obligations. These provisions cover the liabilities that could result from legal action of varying
nature, the impact on profit or loss of seizures incurred and not yet definitively assigned, and amounts expected to be refund-
able to customers where the final amount payable has yet to be determined.

278. Public statement ESMA32-193237008-8369 of 24 October 2024 and Attention Notice no. 2/24 of 20 December 2024.
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Determination of the provisions for risks and charges involves the use of estimates based on current knowledge of factors
that may change over time, potentially resulting in outcomes that may be significantly different from those taken into account
in preparing these financial statements.

In order to reflect in the financial statements the risks arising from the potential fraud perpetrated against Poste Italiane and,
therefore, to determine the accounting impacts related to the potential risk on tax credits?’®, in continuity with previous years,
it was decided to refer to the provisions of IAS 37 - Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities, for the measurement of the
risk of non-compensation should the fraud be ascertained. In such a case, the possible non-recovery of the book value of the
tax credits would not result from a characteristic of the asset being assessed, but rather from the possibility that, in the case
of established cases of fraud, liability would also be extended to the transferee - even if a bona fide third party or injured party
to the offence. As a result of the in-depth studies carried out on the tax credits acquired, also with the support of external
consultants, a specific provision for risks was estimated, determined with the application of a significant degree of professional
judgment, the main elements of uncertainty of which relate to the outcome of the proceedings underway, the identification of
the credits whose deductions have been assigned are effectively non-existent and the outcome of the initiatives taken by Poste
[taliane to protect its interests and recover the amounts paid to parties against whom cases of fraud have been ascertained.

Impairment and stage allocation for financial instruments

Below are the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used to calculate the impairment of financial assets measured at
amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income and to determine the stage allocation of financial instru-
ments, the latter not applicable within the Poste Italiane Group for trade receivables in accordance with the Simplified Approach.

General description of the models utilised

The Group uses the general impairment model in accordance with risk ratings estimated on the basis of the type of counterparty:

* Securities/deposits with Sovereign, Banking and Corporate counterparties: internal models for estimating risk parameters;

¢ Public Administration and Central Counterparties: risk parameters deriving from agency ratings or average default rates
for the sector.

The simplified approach is applied to trade receivables, as described in greater detail later.

Significant increase in credit risk

Based on the impairment model adopted by the Poste Italiane Group to meet the requirements of the accounting standard,
any significant increase in credit risk associated with the financial instruments held, other than trade receivables, is determined
on the basis of a change in the relevant credit rating between the time of the initial investment and the reporting date.

This change in notches is compared with a threshold that takes into account the following factors:

* the rating of the financial instrument at the time of investment;

* the rating of the financial instrument at the reporting date;

* the seniority of the position within the portfolio (vintage factor);

e an additive factor to mitigate the non-linearity of the probability of default (PD) with respect to the rating classes®;

* ajudgmental factor to be used only in the presence of sudden changes in the creditworthiness not yet reflected by the
rating®®'.

279. The accounting treatment of tax credits is governed by Bank of Italy/CONSOB/Ivass Document No. 9 - Bank of Italy/ CONSOB/Ivass Coordination Table on the Application
of IAS/IFRS.
280. The additive factor is built in view of the rating level at the reporting date, where the better the final rating the higher the threshold for the transition to Stage 2.
281. The judgmental factor can summarise significant aspects in determining the significant increase of credit risk, considering such elements as:
e an actual or expected significant change of the internal/external credit rating of the financial instrument;
e actual or expected negative changes in economic, financial or business conditions that might cause a significant change in the borrower’s ability to honour its
obligations, such as an actual or expected increase in interest rates or an actual or expected significant increase in the unemployment rate.
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The ratings used in stage allocation derive from internal models in the case of banking, sovereign and corporate counterparties,
and external infoproviders in the case of Public Administration and Central Counterparties. Based on the above information,
the Poste ltaliane Group rebuts the presumption that there have been significant increases in credit risk following initial recog-
nition, when financial assets are more than 30 days past due.

The Poste lItaliane Group decided not to adopt the Low Credit Risk Exemption and to proceed instead with stage allocation
of the financial instruments concerned.

Regarding trade receivables, given the adoption of the simplified approach under the new accounting standard, expected
credit losses are determined throughout the lifetime of the instrument.

Definition of default

The Poste Italiane Group defines default on the basis of ad hoc assessments that take into account:
* any payment delays;

* market information such as a default rating by the rating agencies;

* internal analyses of specific exposures.

Collective and individual provisions

The collective impairment of a homogenous group of financial assets defines the expected credit loss (ECL) of the instrument,
even though it cannot be associated with a specific exposure. Grouping takes place in relation to the type of counterparty on
the basis of the estimated PD.

Individual provisions are considered only following the review of trade receivables for amounts in excess of a given threshold
and only in relation to single receivables.

Forward looking information

According to the standard, the ECL calculation must also factor in forward looking components based on broad consensus
scenarios.

The Poste lItaliane Group incorporates forward looking information directly in the PD estimation. In particular, for sovereign
counterparties, for which authoritative forward-looking estimates are available®?, these values are used to calculate PD; for
other counterparties, on the other hand, the internal model adopted allows the input dataset needed to calculate PD to be
completed from scenario values referring to some of the model variables. The objective of the approach is to estimate the
unknown variables by using the historical correlation of the available information?®,

ESG information

The Sovereign, Bank and Corporate PD estimation models include variables reflecting Social and Governance factors defined
from indicators provided by authoritative sources such as the UN and the World Bank. The Environmental factor is negligible for
these purposes in view of the 1-year time horizon of the PD itself. In the context of BancoPosta RFC, this factor is monitored
through scenario analyses and verification of ratings provided by external agencies.

282. These include prospective estimates made available by the International Monetary Fund, the UN and the World Bank.
283. In particular, the use of such approach is limited to situations where, actually, the final figures are deemed to be no longer representative of the counterparty’s risk.
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Estimation techniques used

Since events of default cannot be used, as they are not very frequent, to develop credit scoring models for Sovereign, Banking
and Corporate counterparties, a shadow rating approach has been adopted.

This method entails the use of target variables related to the level of external rating produced by the agencies. The target is
identified with the default rate linked to the rating level.

A key rating agency was selected to construct the target, taking into account both the large number of rated counterparties
and the availability of historical data over what was deemed to be an adequate period of time.

The models have been constructed by extracting and utilising the following types of data for each country in the sample:
* macroeconomic data;

* indicators related to Social and Governance issues;

¢ financial statement data.

The internal model estimate used a definition of default based on a payment delay of 90 days.

ECL measurement

Expected credit losses (ECL) are determined over a time horizon consistent with the stage level (12 months or lifetime) on the
basis of the following factors:

e Probability di Default (PD);

e Loss Given Default (LGD);

e Exposure at Default (EAD);

e Time Factor (TF).

The main assumptions/choices adopted in the determination of the factors are as follows:

e PD: as indicated from the start a Point in Time (PIT) and forward-looking valuation has been adopted;

* LGD: use has been made of the Internal Ratings-Based (IRB) Base Approach under the Basel guidelines (45% for senior
risk assets, 75% for subordinated risk assets);

* EAD: exposure calculated prospectively until maturity of the instrument, starting from the development of projected cash
flows. In the development account was taken of specific indexation assumptions for every asset class (fixed income secu-
rities, floating-rate securities, inflation-indexed securities, etc.);

o TF: the effective interest rate of each exposure was used as discount factor.

The assumptions adopted and set out above have led to a reduction in the PD of Italy and other Sovereign counterparties in
general compared to that used in the assessments in the Annual Financial Report as at 31 December 2023.

Trade receivables

The Group adopts the simplified approach to test for the impairment of trade receivables, on the basis of which provisions for
credit losses are determined for an amount equal to expected losses throughout the lifetime of the receivable. Such approach
is implemented through the following process:

* based on total revenue or the historical credit exposure, all receivables or credit exposures exceeding a certain pre-estab-
lished credit threshold are assessed analytically. The analytical evaluation of the exposures entails an analysis of the borrow-
er’s credit quality and solvency, as determined on the basis of internal and external supporting evidence;

» for receivables falling below the threshold set, through the preparation of a matrix with the different impairment percentages
estimated on the basis of historical losses, where they exist, or alternatively on the historical pattern of collections. In con-
structing the impairment matrix, receivables are grouped by homogeneous categories, based on their characteristics, to
take into account the historical loss experience.
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Collateral held and other credit enhancements on trade receivables

To mitigate the risks arising from the extension of credit terms to its customers, the Group has implemented a policy and suita-
ble guidelines that govern the management of trade receivables, the terms and conditions of payment applicable to customers
and defines the corporate process aimed at checking the customer’s creditworthiness, as well as the sustainability of the busi-
ness risk inherent in the contract involving extended payment terms. Depending on the evaluations, the contracts entered into
with customers may require a suitable guarantee. Guarantees are also requested if they are required by rules and regulations
and/or implementing rules of specific services.

The Poste ltaliane Group accepts mainly guarantees issued by primary banks or insurance companies. Alternatively, upon
request of the customer and after a risk analysis, it accepts sureties issued by other institutions, or security deposits by opening
a postal escrow account. The Poste Italiane Group, as a rule, exempts the Public Administration from the provision of guaran-
tees to secure trade receivables arising from transactions with it, save for the cases when such guarantees are mandatory by
law or due to implementing rules of specific services.

For all the exposures evaluated individually, to calculate loss provisions, guarantees reduce the amount of the exposure at risk.

At 31 December 2024, the Group does not hold trade receivables secured by guarantees or other risk mitigation instruments
for which no loss provisions have been made.

Impairment tests of goodwill, cash generating units and
equity investments

Goodwill and other non-current assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 — Impairment of assets. Impairment
testing involves the use of estimates based on factors that may change over time, potentially resulting in effects that may be
significantly different from prior year estimates.

In accordance with the reference accounting standard, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an indi-
vidual asset, the Group identifies the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets (Cash Generating Units - CGUs). The process of identifying such CGUs necessarily involves
management’s judgement as to the specific nature of the activities and business to which they belong and evidence that the
cash inflows from the group of activities are closely interdependent and largely independent of those from other activities (or
groups of activities). The number and scope of CGUs are systematically updated to reflect the effects of new aggregation and
reorganisation operations carried out by the Group and to take into account any external factor that could affect the ability of
assets to generate independent cash inflows.

With reference to the external quantitative indicators of impairment at Group level, it should be noted that, at 31 December
2024, market capitalisation was higher than book equity, while, with regard to internal source elements, it should be noted that
consolidated results at December 2024 were above budget forecasts for the same period.

For the most significant impairment tests performed as at 31 December 2024, the book values tested and the main assump-
tions underlying the tests performed are shown below:

Amount Explicit forecast
(€m) Method used period Growth rate Discount rate
Goodwill Mail, Parcels and Distribution CGU 213 DCF 2025-2028 2.0% 6.11% (WACC)
Goodwill Postepay Sector CGU 459 DCF 2025-2028 2.0% 8.02% (WACCQ)
Goodwill NET Insurance CGU 124 DDM 2025-2028 2.0% 7.95% (Ke)
Investment in Financit SpA 21 DDM 2025-2034 N/A 7.99% (Ke)

DCF: Discounted Cash Flow; DDM: Dividend Discount Model; WACC: Weighted Average Cost of Capital; Ke: cost of equity; N/A: only the explicit forecast period is considered.

Also due to the decrease in market interest rates, the discount rates as at 31 December 2024 are lower than those used for
the previous year’s estimates.

416



Poste Italiane’s Financial Statements at 31 December 2024
2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Mail, Parcels and Distribution CGU

The impairment test of the Mail, Parcels and Distribution CGU was performed, consistent with the previous year, at the consol-
idated level, including the companies within the same operating segment; the activities performed by the different companies
and the resulting cash flows are highly interdependent, as commercial and strategic management decisions are made centrally
at the level of the entire segment.

To estimate the value in use of the CGU, reference was made to the 2024-2028 Strategic Plan “The Connecting Platform”
updated with the 2025 Budget, respectively approved by the Board of Directors of Poste Italiane SpA on 19 March 2024 and
21 February 2025. The economic forecasts used in the execution of the test also include, among the various characterising
elements, forecasts for planned investments that will be focused on achieving the automation and modernisation objectives of
the CGU itself, in continuity with what has been achieved in previous years. Particular importance is attached to investments
classified as ESG that comply with the Group’s Sustainability Reference Principles. The CGU main investment projects include
the Polis Project “Digital Citizenship Service Houses”, energy efficiency measures for real estate assets, and the automation
and evolution of the sorting and delivery network from a green perspective.

In determining the terminal value, calculated on the basis of the last year of explicit forecasts, income was normalised.
Reference was also made to the transfer prices that BancoPosta RFC is expected to pay for the services provided by Poste
[taliane’s distribution network.

The impairment test determined that the related carrying amounts are fair.

The impairment test is based on estimates and assumptions that present elements of uncertainty, also due to the current
context characterised by a significant volatility of the main market variables and a profound aleatory nature of economic
expectations, as well as the continuation of negative economic results and the decline of the postal market in which the Group
operates; for this reason, sensitivity analyses were carried out. In particular, the impairment test showed the recoverability of
the goodwill allocated to the CGU even by increasing the indicated discount rate by 100 basis points and jointly reducing the
long-term growth factor by 20 basis points.

The sensitivities performed on the impairment test lead to a substantial alignment between the recoverable value and the net
invested capital of the CGU, at the same growth rate (2%), with a discount rate of 9.70% (considerably higher even than the
discount rate already used at 31 December 2023, which was 137 basis points higher than the rate at 31 December 2024).

As in the past, in determining the value of properties used as post offices and sorting centres, the Poste Italiane SpA universal
service obligation was taken into account, as was the inseparability of the cash flows generated from the properties that pro-
vide this service, (which the Parent Company is required to operate throughout the country regardless of the expected profita-
bility of each location); the unique nature of the operating processes involved and the substantial overlap between postal and
financial activities within the same outlets, represented by post offices, were also considered. On this basis, the value in use of
land and buildings used in operations is relatively unaffected by changes in the commercial value of the properties concerned
and, in certain critical market conditions, certain properties may have values that are significantly higher than their market value,
without this having any impact on the cash flows or results of the Mail, Parcels and Distribution segment.

The fair value of the Parent Company’s properties used in operations continued to be higher than their carrying amount, as
confirmed by the property valuations carried out.

Postepay Services CGU

In performing the impairment test on goodwill arising from the acquisition of the LIS Group, which took place in 2022, reference
was made to the CGU comprised of all the companies belonging to the Postepay Services segment as a single cash-generat-
ing unit; following the completion of the integration and reorganisation processes of LIS. In fact, the Postepay Services oper-
ating segment is based on unique market and operational processes that are integrated according to a unitary approach, and
it is therefore considered that the cash flows are largely independent of those generated by the Poste Group’s other operating
segments, but closely interrelated within the segment.
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In order to estimate the value in use of the CGU, reference was made to the 2024-2028 “The Connecting Platform” Strategic
Plan, also prepared in accordance with and taking into account the ESG objectives, updated with the 2025 Budget, respec-
tively approved by the Board of Directors of Poste Italiane SpA on 19 March 2024 and 21 February 2025, as well as by the
Boards of Directors of the respective companies belonging to the CGU for the portion pertaining to them. Based on the test
results, there was no need to carry out value adjustments at 31 December 2024.

Sensitivity analyses show that the test is passed very comfortably even in scenarios significantly worse than the one used for
the impairment test.

Net Insurance CGU

Following the acquisition of Net Insurance by Poste Vita through the vehicle company Net Holding in 2023 and the related
Purchase Price Allocation process, goodwill of €124 million emerged, equal to the residual difference between the consider-
ation transferred for the acquisition of Net Insurance by Net Holding and the fair value of the adjusted net assets acquired.

In performing the impairment test on the Net Insurance Group, reference was made to the CGU comprised of Net Insurance
and Net Insurance Life as a cash-generating unit.

To estimate the value in use of the CGU, reference was made to the 2024-2028 “The Connecting Platform” Strategic Plan.
Based on the test results, there was no need to carry out value adjustments at 31 December 2024.

Sensitivities performed on the impairment test lead to substantial alignment between the recoverable amount and the net
assets of the CGU, at the same growth rate (2%), with a discount rate of 11.9%.

Investment in Financit SpA

With reference to the investment in Financit, the test results showed the need to adjust the carrying amount of the investment
with a corresponding negative effect of about €8 million on the consolidated economic result (about €19 million on the eco-
nomic result of Poste Italiane’s separate financial statements); following the impairment, the carrying amount of the investment
is €21 million.

Investment in Anima Holding SpA

In relation to the investment in Anima Holding, it should be noted that, unlike in previous years, the impairment test was not
performed at 31 December 2024 following the decision to accept the Takeover Bid (“OPA”) launched by Banco BPM Vita
SpA on the ordinary shares of Anima Holding. The value of the consideration per share offered in the Takeover Bid is higher
than the unitary carrying amount of the investment recognised at 31 December 2024 in both the Poste Group’s and Poste
[taliane’s financial statements. For further information, please refer to Note 3 - Material events during the year and events after
31 December 2024.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The cost of these fixed assets is depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.
The useful life is determined at the time of acquisition and is based on historical experience of similar investments, market
conditions and expectations regarding future events that may have an impact, such as technological developments. The actual
useful life may, therefore, differ from the estimated useful life.
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Years

% annual depreciation

Buildings 40-59 3%-2%
Structural improvements to own properties 18-31 6%-3%
Plant 8-23 13%-4%
Light constructions 10 10%
Equipment 3-10 33%-10%
Furniture and fittings 3-8 33%-13%
Electrical and electronic office equipment 3-10 33%-10%
Motor vehicles, automobiles, motorcycles 4-10 25%-10%

Leasehold improvements

estimated lease term*

Other assets 3-5 33%-20%
* Or the useful life of the improvement if shorter than the estimated lease term.

Investment property Years % annual depreciation

Property 39-42 3%-2%

Structural improvements to own properties 17-18 6%

In the case of assets to be handed over, located on land held under concession or sub-concession, on expiry of the conces-
sion term, or whilst awaiting confirmation of renewal, any additional depreciation of assets takes into account the probable
residual duration of the right to use the assets to provide public services, to be estimated on the basis of the framework
agreements entered into with the Public Administration entity, the status of negotiations with the grantors and past experience.

Lastly, as regards intangible assets, amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and extends, systematically and on
a straight-line basis, over its estimated useful life within a range of 2 to 5 years.

Insurance liabilities

The main models, inputs and assumptions used to estimate insurance liabilities, i.e. future cash inflows and outflows related to
insurance contracts, are summarised below.

Input data, assumptions and estimate techniques used

For contracts measured with the VFA model, the estimate of future flows related to the Liability for remaining coverage is made

considering the following inputs:

* Non-financial assumptions, such as mortality, lapses, conversions, expenses, etc. Expense assumptions, consistent with
the principle, are parametrised taking into account only attributable costs;

¢ Financial assumptions, such as returns on assets backing insurance liabilities, asset allocation, etc.;

e Stochastic economic scenarios?®* differentiated by separately managed account and by type of business.

The estimate of cash flows takes into account all the commitments of the companies in respect of the contracts under assess-
ment through the elaboration of magnitudes such as gross premiums, other inflows other than premiums consistent with the
quantification of the benefits under analysis, commissions, expenses, performance settlements, any residual Mathematical
Provision at the end of the projection, and other outflows other than the above consistent with the quantification of the benefits
under analysis.

For contracts measured with the BBA, the future fulfilment flows represent estimates of the future cash flows that will be gen-
erated by the natural fulfilment of the contracts by the companies and therefore include all possible cash flows that fall within
the contract boundary.

284. A stochastic mathematical model makes it possible to study the course of phenomena that follow random or probabilistic laws.
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Projected cash flows include claims paid, reimbursements for early extinguishment of contracts, acquisition commissions, other
directly attributable administrative expenses, other directly attributable acquisition expenses, premiums written and recoveries.

[t should also be noted that, for onerous contracts measured through the PAA, future fulfilment flows are calculated using the
same approach as for contracts measured through the BBA.

Liabilities for incurred claims include future fulfilment cash flows related to past services attributed to the group of contracts at the

measurement date. These flows are defined as the sum of the following components:

e Cash flows of undiscounted Best Estimate Liabilities (UBEL?%), which are the best estimate of cash outflows for both reported
claims and late claims;

» Discount effect, calculated by discounting the cash flows referred to in the previous point using the defined discount curve;

* Adjustment for non-financial risks, estimated using the methodology defined by the Group.

The process of allocating costs between “attributable” and “non-attributable” is done punctually according to the cost centres that
incur them. The development and related deferral of costs follow the associated cash flow projections and the same recognition
metrics adopted for the CSM release.

No changes have been made to the insurance liability valuation process with respect to the financial statements at 31 December
2023, with the exception of the financial and technical assumptions, which are updated as necessary at each valuation date.

Investment component

Assessments of the expected investment component to be included in the estimate of fulfilment future cash flows are made
separately by product type. An estimate of the flow related to the Investment component is provided for both valuations at initial
recognition of groups of contracts and for valuations at each reporting date.

For contracts with discretionary participation features and annuities in the accumulation phase, the expected investment compo-
nent is equal to the lapse value net of penalties, whereby the estimate in future fulfilment flows is obtained as the difference between
the estimated payout amount and the countervalue calculated on the basis of the lapse value net of penalties. For annuities that are
certain to be paid out, the value of the investment component is not an estimate since it corresponds to the value of the benefits to
be paid out, while for annuities that are certain to be paid out and pure risk products, there is no Investment component.

Method for determining the discount rate used

Below are details, by individual portfolio, of the discount curves used by the Poste Italiane Group in determining its insurance
liabilities and the adjustments made to the reference Basic Risk Free Curve to take into account the counterparty’s level of
liquidity (llliquidity Premiums):

¢ in relation to the Separately managed account participating business and the Unit Linked portfolio connected to Separately
managed accounts (Multi-class products), the llliquidity Premium is calibrated on the basis of the composition of the refer-
ence portfolio (e.g. Separately managed accounts or Company) using approaches and metrics borrowed from the Solvency
Il approach;

e in relation to the non-participating Life Business and for the Unit Linked portfolio not connected to Separately managed
accounts, use was made of the values of llliquidity Premiums consistent with the Volatility Adjustment value provided by
EIOPA, in line with Solvency II. This approach is replicated in Net Insurance Life’s pure risk business;

* inrelation to the P&C business relating to Poste Assicura and Net Insurance, the Basic Risk Free curve is adopted, assum-
ing an llliquidity Premium consistent with the Volatility Adjustment value provided by EIOPA.

In operational terms, the Poste Italiane Group defined the curves at the date of initial recognition of the contract, in particular:

* for the Life business related to contracts issued by Poste Vita, the initial recognition curve of contracts is set equal to the
Based Risk Free curve with illiquidity premium related to the previous quarter;

e for the P&C business relating to Poste Assicura contracts, the curve at initial recognition of contracts is the Based Risk Free
of the previous year (31/12/t-1);

285. Undiscounted Best Estimate Liabilities.
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» for the P&C business, relating to contracts issued by Net Insurance, and for the Life business, relating to contracts issued
by Net Insurance Life, the curve at initial recognition of contracts is the Based Risk Free with Volatility Adjustment relative to
the previous year (31/12/t-1).

For the BBA method, in order to calculate the interest accrued on the CSM at the reporting date, the Poste Italiane Group uses
the forward curve determined with respect to the spot locked-in curve at the valuation date.

For the PAA model, the Poste Italiane Group has not made an adjustment for the effect of the time value of money and financial risk.

Method for determining the Adjustment for non-financial risk

The Poste Italiane Group adopts the percentile approach. The amount of the adjustment for non-financial risk is determined
by considering the scope of technical risks to which group companies are exposed, using assessments borrowed from the
Solvency Il framework. In particular, the Adjustment for non-financial risk for the groups of contracts belonging to the Life
business is estimated taking into account the risk exposures typical of the Life business and the underwriting risk net of the
loss-absorbing capacity of the technical provisions®® and gross of reinsurance. Operational risk and counterparty default risk
are also excluded from the analyses.

For insurance contracts belonging to the P&C business, exposures to pricing risk, reserving risk, catastrophe risk, and the risk
of early exits typical of the type of business are considered. In the P&C business, the Adjustment for non-financial risk is also
determined, unlike in the Life business, for the Liability for incurred claims and Assets from outward reinsurance.

In calculating the amount of the Adjustment for non-financial risk, the separation between the insurance services component
and the financing component is not applicable for Poste Italiane Group companies.

Methods for determining the CSM coverage unit

The release to the Statement of profit or loss of the CSM over the life of the contracts is done through the definition of the
so-called Coverage Unit (CU). With reference to the Life business, the Poste Italiane Group determines the CSM release by
adopting a Coverage Unit based on a Volume-based driver, defined separately for each measurement model adopted:

e BBA model: the CU is defined with a driver based on the sums insured, which are similar to the lump-sum death benefit
for pure risk contracts, and on the mathematical provisions, for annuities (in the payout phase) not under the Separately
managed accounts from Long-Term Care products;

* VFA model: the CU for DPF contracts is defined using a driver based on mathematical provisions.

In the context of the CSM release pattern of the P&C business, for contracts valued with the BBA Model, the Group has
decided to use for the business characterised by constant insured capital a release driver based on earned premiums gross
of commissions (also considering the effect of any premium refunds and related commission reversals); with the exception of
the P&C business characterised by decreasing insured capital (Salary-backed of Net Insurance), the use of a method based
on insured sums was defined as for the Life business.

The CSM release percentage is defined by relating the volume-based drivers as defined above to the amount of volumes of
these drivers projected over a time period that coincides with the duration of the group of insurance contracts.

For products measured with the VFA method, the Group considers an additional component (additional release) in the CSM
release for the period aimed at capturing the differences between the margin result obtained with real-world financial assump-
tions (Real World curves), compared to that obtained with risk-neutral financial assumptions (Risk Neutral curves). This addi-
tional release is obtained from the difference between the period-end prospective CSM before release under the Real World
assumption and the period-end prospective CSM before release under the Risk Neutral assumption.

286. The loss-absorbing capacity of technical provisions represents an adjustment provided for in the SlI regulation, calculated on the basis of the technical provisions, limited
to the component of future flows, of the returns paid back to policyholders, which increase as interest rates rise. This adjustment reduces the SCR value, on the basis of
which the Adjustment for non-financial risk is calculated.
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As a result of the additional release, it is possible to achieve a CSM release that is more consistent with the financial perfor-
mance of the underlying items of the insurance contracts and to obviate the systematic deferral of profit recognition in future
years through coverage units.

Deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the expectation of taxable income in future years. Assessments of expected
taxable income depend on factors which may change over time, impacting on the valuation of the deferred tax assets in the
statement of financial position.

Share-based payments

As further described in Note 4.12 - Additional information - Share-based payment arrangements and 5.12 - Additional informa-
tion - Share-based payment arrangements of the consolidated financial statements and Poste Italiane SpA's separate financial
statements, the valuation of the share-based payment arrangements in place within the Poste Italiane Group at the close of
these financial statements was based on the conclusions reached by actuaries external to the Group. The plan terms and
conditions link the award of the related options to the occurrence of certain events, such as the achievement of performance
targets and performance hurdles and, in certain areas of operation, compliance with certain capital adequacy and liquidity
requirements. For these reasons, measurement of the liability, equity reserve and the corresponding economic effects involves
the use of estimates based on current knowledge of factors that may change over time, potentially resulting in outcomes that
may be significantly different from those taken into account in preparing these financial statements.

Employee termination benefits

The measurement of Employee termination benefits is also based on calculations performed by independent actuaries. The
calculation takes account of termination benefits accrued for the period of service to date and is based on various demograph-
ic and economic-financial assumptions.

Below are the main actuarial assumptions applied in the calculation of the employee termination benefit provision at 31
December 2024, also based on the experience of each Group company and the best reference practice:

Economic and financial assumptions

31.12.2024
Discount rate 3.18%
Inflation rate 2.00%
Annual rate of increase of employee termination benefits 3.00%
Demographic assumptions
31.12.2024
Mortality ISTAT 2018
Disability INPS tables broken down by age and gender
Retirement age Achievement of general mandatory insurance requirements
Frequency of employee termination benefits advances Specific table with rates differentiated by Company
Employee turnover frequency Specific table with rates differentiated by Company
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Determination of the lease liability

In determining the financial liability for leases, the Group has chosen to refer to an Incremental Borrowing Rate (“IBR”) based
on a hypothetical loan that would have been obtained in the current economic environment and applied to groups of contracts
with similar remaining terms and to similar companies. In particular, each IBR takes account of the risk-free rate identified on
the basis of factors such as the economic environment, currency, contract term and credit spread reflecting the companies’
organisation and financial structure. The IBR associated with the commencement of the contract will be reviewed whenever
there is a lease modification, meaning substantial and significant changes to the contract conditions over the life of the agree-
ment (e.g. the lease term or the amount of future lease payments). The IBR table defined for groups of contracts with similar
residual duration and for similar reference companies is periodically monitored and updated at least once during the year.

With regard instead to determination of the lease term at the commencement date or of the remaining term at a later date (in
the event of substantial and significant changes to contract conditions) and, in particular, for property leases, the Group uses a
valuation approach based primarily on the expected duration of the obligation as per the agreement between the parties and/
or in the legal framework of reference (Law 392 of 27 July 1978), and it expects an extension of the lease due to an interpreta-
tion/forecast of events, circumstances and future intentions, including of a strategic nature, of both the lessor and the lessee.
This has resulted in a set of rules for determining the lease term, to be applied to leased properties classified previously in three
distinct clusters: properties where the lease is subject to legal restrictions and high commercial-value properties; properties
for civilian use, such as the company accommodation for Group employees and executives; and other properties used in
operations.

The lease term for all of the other agreements was set as equal to the duration of the obligation agreed upon between the
parties, in keeping with future intent in wanting and being able to complete the term and past experience.

Options on minority interests?®?

In the context of particular corporate transactions, there are call and put options that will allow Poste Italiane to purchase, at
certain future dates, shares held by minority shareholders. The exercise price of these options is generally determined on the
basis of a formula that provides for the application of a multiplier to certain economic/equity targets of the company acquired.
For said cases in the consolidated financial statements, a financial liability has been recognised (in addition to the portion
of equity attributable to non-controlling interests), to take account of the possible exercise of options, as matching entry to
Group’s equity, the value of which depends on estimates made internally and which could change even significantly in the
current and future years. Subsequent changes in the value of the financial liability will be reflected in the Group’s statement of
profit or loss.

For details of the corporate transactions from which the need to recognise this financial liability arose, see Note B8 - Financial
liabilities.

287. An option contract that allows an entity to purchase the interests of minority shareholders of a subsidiary in exchange for cash or other financial assets gives rise to a
financial liability in the consolidated financial statements for the present value of the amount payable. Any change in the financial liability from the date of recognition is
accounted for with a different balancing entry depending on whether it refers to:

e minority shareholders directly interested in the performance of the subsidiary’s business with regard to the transfer of risks and benefits on the shares subject to the
option. One of the indicators of this interest is the fair value measurement of the option exercise price. In addition to the presence of this indicator, the Group makes a
case-by-case assessment of the facts and circumstances that characterise existing transactions. In this case, the discounted value of the option is initially deducted
from the Group’s equity reserves. Any subsequent changes in the valuation of the exercise price of the option are reflected in the statement of profit or loss.

e minority shareholders not directly interested in the performance of the business (e.g. exercise price of the predetermined option). The exercise price of the option, duly
discounted, is deducted from the corresponding amount of Capital and Reserves pertaining to non-controlling interests. Any subsequent changes in the valuation of
the option exercise price follow the same logic, with no impact on the statement of profit or loss.
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Conversion of the financial statements into foreign currencies

For the purposes of preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the statement of financial position and statement of prof-
it or loss of all consolidated companies are expressed in euro, which is the functional currency used by the Parent Company.

The financial statements of companies that operate in a functional currency other than the euro are translated into the pres-
entation currency using the closing rate at the reporting date for assets and liabilities, including goodwill and consolidation
adjustments, and the average exchange rate for the year (if this reasonably approximates the exchange rate at the date of the
respective transactions) for revenue and costs. All the resulting exchange rate differences are recognised in other comprehen-
sive income and shown separately in a specific equity reserve; this reserve is reversed proportionally to the statement of profit
or loss at the time of the (total or partial) disposal of the relevant investment.

The exchange rates used to convert the financial statements of consolidated companies in foreign currencies are those pub-
lished by the Bank of Italy and the European Central Bank and presented in the table below:

2024 2023
Exact change rate Average annual Exact change rate Average annual
Currency on 31 December exchange rate on 31 December exchange rate
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 7.583 7.787 7.851 7.66
US dollar 1.039 1.082 1.105 1.081
British Pound Sterling 0.829 0.847 0.869 0.870

Crypto-assets

In order to comply with the requirements of the Bank of Italy/CONSOB Communication of 6 March 2025, it should be noted
that the Poste Italiane Group does not hold, either through the Parent Company Poste Italiane SpA or through fully consoli-
dated subsidiaries, any crypto-assets for which it was necessary to adopt dedicated accounting policies or use estimates for
their valuation in the financial statements.

2.7 Climate change and the macroeconomic environment

Climate change disclosure

Climate change and the transition to a low-carbon economy are becoming increasingly relevant to businesses, banks, govern-
ments, regulators, and investors.

Although the Poste Italiane Group attaches particular importance to environmental protection, aware of the need to use
resources responsibly in order to minimise negative environmental impacts®®, taking into account the business in which the
Group operates, issues related to climate change are considered, in the exception provided by the reference accounting stand-
ards, irrelevant for consolidated financial reporting.

However, also taking into account the disclosure required in the past by ESMA and recalled in Public Statement 32-193237008-
8369 of 24 October 2024, as well as by CONSOB’s Warning Notice of 20 December 2024, the table below provides a map-
ping of climate-related disclosures with a corresponding reference to the paragraphs of Poste Italiane’s consolidated financial
statements and separate financial statements in which the issue is addressed.

288. For a description of the strategic guidelines set by the Group, also in line with its adherence to the Paris Agreement and the New Green Deal, please refer to the dedicated
sections of the Sustainability Reporting in the Report on Operations.
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Topic Note Description

e Focus on the estimation of expected cash flows in relation

Note 2.6 Use of estimates “Impairment tests of goodwill, cash to the CGUs subject to impairment.

Ciimate Change Estimates and generating units and equity investments” and “Impairment

Judgements and stage allocation for financial instruments” e Details of ESG factors considered in estimating the
9 Probability of Default (PD).
* Investments made in the reporting year aimed at reducing

Sustainable investrments Note A1 - “Property, plant and equipment” the environmental impact of the Group/Parent Company.

Note A4 - “Right-of-use assets” ¢ Increase in Right-of-Use Assets related to the conclusion

of leasing contracts for green vehicles.

Note A6 - “Financial assets” e Percentage of ESG products in the entire investment and
Sustainable finance Note 4.12”Additional Information - Assets under insurance portfolio of BancoPosta Fondi SpA SGR and

management” Poste Vita Group.

e Description of the accounting treatment applied to
environmental certificates.

* Details of closing inventories referring to emission
allowances and guarantees of origin and carbon credits
present at year-end.

¢ Indication of costs incurred during the financial year for the
purchase of environmental certificates.

Note 2.5 “Material information on accounting standards -
Environmental certificates”

Note A7 - “Inventories”

Note C5 - “Cost of goods and services”

Environmental certificates

Note 4.12 “Additional Information - Share-based payment

| arrangements e Description of incentive plans some of which are anchored
Share-based payments Note 5.12 “Additional Information - Share-based payment to the achievement of ESG objectives.
arrangements

e Description of the exposure of Poste Italiane SpA and the
entire Group to risks related to climate change and actions
taken to mitigate those risks.

Note 4.6 “Risk management”

Climate risk Note 5.6 “Risk management”

Macroeconomic environment

The estimates used in the preparation of the Financial Statements adequately take into account the particular macroeconomic
context of reference at 31 December 2024, heavily influenced by a number of factors such as: inflation, rising interest rates,
deterioration of the economic climate, geopolitical risks and uncertainties on future developments considering the ongoing
conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East. These uncertainties are reflected in the indicators used as the basis for the estimates.

For information on how these uncertainties were reflected in the estimated PDs used to calculate expected losses, please refer
to Section 2.6 “Use of Estimates - Impairment and stage allocation for financial instruments”; while for a full discussion of risks
related to the economic environment, please refer to the specific sections of the Report on Operations.

2.8 Basis of consolidation

The Poste Italiane Group’s consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Poste Italiane SpA and of the
companies over which the Parent Company directly or indirectly exercises control, as defined by IFRS 10, from the date on
which control is obtained until the date on which control is no longer held by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it
simultaneously:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee;

* has the ability to influence those returns through its power over the investee.

Control is exercised both via direct or indirect ownership of voting shares, and via the exercise of dominant influence, defined
as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity, including indirectly based on legal agreements, obtain-
ing the related benefits, regardless of the nature of the equity interest. In determining control, potential voting rights exercisable
at the end of the reporting period are taken into account.

The consolidated financial statements have been specifically prepared at 31 December 2024, after appropriate adjustment,
where necessary, to align accounting policies with those of the Parent Company.
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Subsidiaries that, in terms of their size or operations, are, either individually or taken together, irrelevant to a true and fair view
of the Group’s results of operations and financial position are not included within the scope of consolidation.

The criteria used for line-by-line consolidation are as follows:

* the assets, liabilities, costs and revenue of consolidated entities are accounted for on a line-by-line basis, separating where
applicable the equity and profit/(loss) amounts attributable to non-controlling interests in consolidated equity and consoli-
dated profit or loss;

* business combinations, in which control over an entity is acquired, are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of a business combination is represented by the current value (fair value) at the date of acquisition of the assets sold,
the liabilities assumed, the equity instruments issued and any other directly attributable accessory charges; any difference
between the cost of acquisition and the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired, following review of their fair value, is
recognised as goodwill arising from consolidation (if positive), or recognised in profit or loss (if negative);

* acquisitions of non-controlling interests in entities already controlled by the Group are not accounted for as acquisitions, but
as equity transactions; in the absence of a relevant accounting standard, the Group recognises any difference between the
cost of acquisition and the related share of net assets of the subsidiary in equity;

* any significant gains and losses (and the related tax effects) on transactions between companies consolidated on a line-
by-line basis, to the extent not yet realised with respect to third parties, are eliminated, as are intercompany payables and
receivables, costs and revenue, and finance costs and income;

¢ gains and losses deriving from the disposal of investments in consolidated companies are recognised in profit or loss based
on the difference between the sale price and the corresponding share of consolidated equity disposed of.

Investments in subsidiaries that are not significant and are not consolidated, and those in companies over which the Group

exerts significant influence (assumed when the Group holds an interest of between 20% and 50%), hereinafter “associates”,

and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. At the time of acquisition, the investment is accounted for using

the equity method. Any difference between the cost of acquisition of the investment and the net fair value of the investee’s

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as follows:

a. goodwill related to an associate or a joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Amortisation of such
goodwill is not permitted;

b. in determining the initial value of the entity’s investment, any excess of the entity’s interest in the net fair value of investee’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over cost is recognised as income in determining the acquirer’s interest in the profit (loss) for
the period of the associate or joint venture in the period in which the interest is acquired.

After acquisition, appropriate adjustments are made to the entity’s share of the profits or losses of the associate or joint venture

to account, for example, for additional depreciation or amortisation of the investee’s depreciable or amortisable assets, based

on the excess of their fair values over their carrying amounts at the time the investment was acquired, and of any impairment
losses on goodwill or property, plant and equipment. The equity method is as follows:

e the Group’s share of an entity’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss from the date on which sig-
nificant influence or control is obtained until the date on which significant influence or control is no longer exerted by the
Group; provisions are made to cover a company'’s losses that exceed the carrying amount of the investment, to the extent
that the Group has legal or constructive obligations to cover such losses; changes in the equity of companies accounted for
using the equity method not related to the profit/(loss) for the year are recognised directly in equity;

¢ unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Parent Company/subsidiaries and the company accounted for
using the equity method are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate; unrealised losses, unless relat-
ing to impairment, are eliminated.

426



Poste Italiane’s Financial Statements at 31 December 2024
2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Changes in the scope of consolidation and other
corporate transactions

Multi-Asset Funds

During the course of 2023, the Poste Italiane Group launched a project to “replace” the Luxembourg-law multi-compartment
SICAV sub-funds, in which Poste Vita SpA had invested a portion of the assets (around €25 billion) pertaining to the Separately
Managed Accounts, with 11 newly established Italian-law UCITS managed by BancoPosta Fondi SpA SGR.

The objective of this project was to create a structure that would allow the insurance company - within the legal and regulatory
limits of reference - to benefit from a model better suited to respond to the best practices of the domestic insurance industry,
in terms of investments in “complex assets”.

The project ended on 13 September 2024 with the completion of the cross-border merger by incorporation of the SICAV’s sub-
funds into the new UCITS funds, through which the financial instruments and sums of money previously held in the SICAV’s
sub-funds were transferred to the latter.

At the date of these annual financial statements, the 11 UCITS comply with the requirements of IFRS 10 - Consolidated

Financial Statements for the existence of control and, consequently, are fully consolidated in the Consolidated financial state-

ments of the Poste Italiane Group as:

i. Poste Vita SpA owns 100% of the units of the Funds in which the assets pertaining to the Separately Managed Accounts
are invested;

ii. BancoPosta Fondi SpA SGR, the manager of the Funds, contractually holds the power to influence their performance;

iii. both of the above companies are controlled by Poste ltaliane SpA, which, in exercising its management and coordination
activities, defines the strategic guidelines, the management of investments and the resulting cash flows.

The line-by-line consolidation of the Funds, which from an economic point of view did not have any impact on the result for
the year, made it necessary to present the financial assets and liabilities contained in the Funds at the statement of financial
position level and the income elements characterising the change in the period at the profit or loss level.

MLK Fresh

On 31 January 2024, through the establishment of the NewCo called “MLK Fresh Srl”, a partnership in the Fresh Food sec-
tor was formalised between MLK Deliveries SpA and Mazzocco Srl, an ltaltrans Group company that operates as a national
refrigerated courier.

MLK Fresh Srl, 70% owned by MLK and 30% by Mazzocco Srl, will be the vehicle through which the parties will offer advanced
delivery services in ltaly dedicated to the fresh food segment in the B2C e-commerce and/or scheduled deliveries market.

N&TS Group Networks & Transactional Systems Group

On 28 February 2024, PostePay signed an agreement to acquire 20% of N&TS GROUP Networks & Transactional Systems
Group SpA, a leading ltalian company in software solutions for electronic payments. The closing of the transaction took place
on 15 April 2024 following the fulfilment of the conditions precedent.

By virtue of the option provided for in paragraphs 45 et seq. of IFRS 3 to complete the valuation of the business combination within
twelve months from the date of the transaction, the difference between the agreed consideration (€17.6 million) and the fair value
of the portion of the net assets acquired (€2.9 million) was provisionally allocated to goodwill in the amount of €14.7 million and
is included in the carrying amount of the investment, which is valued using the equity method due to the connection relationship.
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Poste Logistics

On 4 March 2024, Poste Logistics SpA was established, whose share capital is wholly-owned by Poste Italiane SpA; the com-
pany will be dedicated to integrated logistics activities for the Poste ltaliane Group, benefiting from the business unit of SDA
Express Courier SpA (“SDA”) concerning the integrated logistics business, through a partial demerger transaction. The partial
demerger transaction, which was resolved by the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings of SDA and Poste Logistics SpA on
27 March 2024, was formalised on 25 June 2024 effective as of 1 July 2024.

Locker Italia

On 18 April 2024 the company Locker Italia SpA was established - owned by Poste Italiane SpA and Deutsche Post International
BV with equal stakes of 50% respectively - with the objective of developing, in Italy, a network of lockers for last mile deliveries
of parcels managed by Poste Italiane SpA and the e-commerce division of the DHL Group.

Postego

On 9 May 2024, Postego SpA was established, a benefit company wholly-owned by Poste Italiane, with the aim of progres-
sively internalising the Poste Italiane car fleet (about 30 thousand delivery vehicles).

Casina Poste

On 21 June 2024, Casina Poste was established as an amateur sports company with limited liability (Casina Poste SSD ar.l.),
wholly-owned through Poste Italiane SpA (72%), PostePay SpA (7%), Postel SpA (7%), Poste Vita SpA (7%) and SDA Express
Courier SpA (7%), for the organisation and management as well as the promotion, enhancement and dissemination of amateur
sporting activities.

SPV Cosenza

On 25 June 2024, SPV Cosenza SpA was established, a company 95% owned by Poste Italiane SpA and 5% by Plurima SpA,
dedicated to the performance of all the services covered by the public-private partnership contract for the management and
rationalisation of integrated healthcare logistics for the Cosenza Provincial Health Authority.

The following material events also took place during the year:

* on 22 May 2024, Poste Italiane SpA transferred to PostePay SpA its entire stake in Conio Inc. amounting to 16.29 % of the
relevant share capital;

e on 27 June 2024, the deed of sale of a stake held by SDA Express Courier SpA in the Consorzio Logistica Pacchi S.C.p.A.
in the amount of 5.5% in favour of Poste Logistics SpA was signed: thus, SDA's shareholding in the Consorzio increased
from 19% to 13.5%;

e on 10 December 2024, Poste lItaliane SpA exercised the early conversion of the loan issued by sennder Technologies
GmbH into shares of the same as part of the broader capital increase transaction promoted by the company totalling €39
million with the shareholder Scania as lead investor. Following the completion of these transactions, Poste Italiane SpA's
stake in sennder Technologies GmbH was reduced from 10.2% to 9.7% on a fully diluted basis.
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Conclusion of the valuation of business combinations
from the previous year

With reference to the corporate transactions that took place in 2023 for which Poste Italiane availed itself of the option set forth
in paragraphs 45 et seq. of IFRS 3 to complete the valuation of the business combination within twelve months from the date
of acquisition, at 31 December 2024 the process was concluded, confirming the results already represented at 31 December
2023. A summary of them is given below:

Net Insurance (April 2023)

As a result of the valuation activities performed, an adjustment to the fair value of the net assets acquired was recognised for
a total of €10.8 million, of which:

¢ €10.8 million increase in intangible assets related to brand development;

* an increase in property, plant and equipment of €1.4 million relating to owned property;

* reduction of insurance liabilities by €3.4 million for cash flows related to amounts repayable by the distributing banks;

* deferred tax effects related to the above adjustments in the amount of €4.8 million.

The remaining difference between the consideration transferred (€180.8 million) and the fair value of the net assets acquired by
the Group adjusted following the PPA process (€57 million) was allocated to Goodwill in the amount of €123.8 million.

Sennder Italy (April 2023)

It was confirmed that the difference between the consideration (€20.7 million) and the fair value of the portion of the net assets
acquired (€1.8 million) is entirely attributable to goodwill (included in the carrying amount of the investment) in the amount of
€18.9 million.

Sourcesense Platforms (January 202322°)

It was confirmed that the difference between the transaction price and the portion of the net assets acquired, amounting to
approximately €1 million, was recorded as Goodwill under Intangible assets.

289. On 24 January 2023, Sourcesense finalised the acquisition of Eco-Mind Ingegneria Informatica Srl and its subsidiary HeadApp Srl. The two acquired companies were
merged into the NewCo called Sourcesense Platforms Srl with accounting and tax effects from 1 July 2023.
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Material events during the year and
events after 31 December 2024

3.1 Material events

The following material events also occurred in 2024:

Russia-Ukraine Conflict
The year 2024 was characterised by the continuation of the crisis between the European countries Russia and Ukraine.

In order to assess the impacts of the conflict for the Group, as requested by the national and international Authorities, and
in line with the previous financial statements, an assessment was carried out on the current and future impacts and on the
sanctions imposed on Russia by state and supranational authorities, on the activities, on the financial situation and on the
economic results of the Group in consideration of the available evidence and the scenarios that can be configured at the date
of preparation of the following financial statements.

The potential impacts, although at present random and uncertain also in relation to the pressure on inflation driven by sharp
increases in energy and raw material prices, appear limited in relation to the fact that the Group’s operations are almost entirely
located within the national territory and without branches in the value chain with the countries involved.

In addition, monitoring of the existing relations between the Group and the parties directly or indirectly involved was carried

out, which led to the following findings:

* with reference to the Parent Company, the existence of relations with the corresponding foreign postal administrations of
Russia, Belarus and Ukraine have credit and debit balances of insignificant amounts;

¢ with reference to Poste Vita, within the Multi-asset funds, there are some indirect exposures to the countries involved in the
aforementioned events that represent a non-significant portion of the relevant NAV.

Purchase of treasury shares

In execution of the authorisation to purchase treasury shares resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of Poste Italiane on 31 May
2024, aimed at acquiring a supply of shares to be allocated to directors and employees of the Group who are beneficiaries of
the variable incentive plans, whose launch was communicated to the market on 31 May 2024, from 3 to 10 June 2024, Poste
ltaliane purchased 1,166,667 treasury shares, at an average unit price of €12.804423 for a total value of €14,938,498.18.
Subsequently, in the period between 7 August 2024 and 9 August 2024, Poste ltaliane purchased 710,802 treasury shares at
an average unit price of €11.788388, for a total value of €8,379,209.76.

At the close of the second tranche of the programme, considering also the treasury shares in the portfolio deriving from pre-

vious buy-back transactions and the delivery to the beneficiaries of the incentive plans, at 31 December 2024, Poste Italiane
holds 11,492,604 treasury shares, equal to 0.880% of the share capital.
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National collective labour agreement renewed

On 28 July 2024, the National Collective Labour Agreement (CCNL), which expired at the end of 2023, was renewed for the
period 2024-2027 for the non-managerial staff of Poste Italiane SpA and the other Group companies to which the same CCNL
applies.

Interim dividend

On 6 November 2024, Poste ltaliane’s Board of Directors, in light of the Company’s financial position and results of operations
in the first nine months of 2024, the performance for the following months, the business outlook and the related expected
economic prospects at 31 December 2024, and in line with the Group’s dividend policy, resolved to advance, as an interim
dividend, part of the ordinary dividend for 2024. To this end, the Company has prepared a Report and Financial Statements
pursuant to article 2433-bis of the Italian Civil Code, which show that the Company’s financial position, results of operations
and cash flows allow such distribution. The opinion of the independent auditors was obtained on these documents.

The interim dividend of €0.33 per share, gross of any legal withholding taxes, was made with effect from 20 November 2024,
with “ex-dividend date” of coupon no. 15 coinciding with 18 November 2024 and record date (i.e. the date on which the divi-
dend was entitled to be paid) coinciding with 19 November 2024.

Based on the number of shares outstanding at 6 November 2024, which amounted to 1,294,617,396, the total amount of the
interim dividend was €427 million.

3.2 Events after the end of the reporting period

Events occurring after the reporting date are reported below:

Net Holding SpA

An extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Net Holding SpA (“Net Holding”) was held on 14 November 2024, during which
the shareholders, Poste Vita SpA and IBL Banca SpA, resolved to dissolve Net Holding early and put it into liquidation. On 3
February 2025, following the authorisations received from the regulatory authority, the resolution to liquidate and the appoint-
ment of the liquidator was registered with the Companies’ Register. The completion of the liquidation and the assignment to
Net Holding’s shareholders of the 97.8% stake it held in Net Insurance SpA are expected by the end of the first half of 2025

Anima Holding SpA

On 10 February 2025, the Board of Directors of Poste Italiane SpA resolved to send to Banco BPM Vita SpA (“Banco BPM
Vita”) a letter of commitment to adhere to the Takeover Bid (“OPA”) launched by the latter on the ordinary shares of Anima
Holding SpA The commitment is subject to the verification of certain conditions, including (i) Banco BPM Vita’s acceptance of
the letter of commitment; (i) that the offer price be increased to bring it into line with current market prices; and (i) the fulfil-
ment of all legal conditions, including the necessary authorisation resolution by the shareholders’ meeting of Banco BPM SpA
(“Banco BPM”). It should be noted that on 11 February 2025, Banco BPM Vita sent Poste Italiane SpA its acceptance of the
letter of commitment and that Banco BPM’s ordinary shareholders’ meeting of 28 February 2025 approved the increase to
€7.00 of the consideration per share offered under the Takeover Bid, as well as reserving for its Board of Directors the right to
waive all or part of one or more of the voluntary effectiveness conditions attached to the Takeover Bid, which have not yet been
satisfied. Following CONSOB’s approval of the offer document on 13 March 2025, the acceptance period began, running from
17 March 2025 to 4 April 2025 (unless extended).
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Patrimonio Ralia Logistica - SICAF SpA

On 14 February 2025, the company Patrimonio Italia Logistica - SICAF SpA (externally managed) was established - owned
by Poste Italiane SpA and Dea Capital Real Estate Sgr SpA, with initial stakes of 90% and 10% respectively - in which Poste
[taliane will contribute all the largest sites of the primary network and a large part of the intermediate network for a total area of
approximately 640,000 square metres.

This initiative is dedicated to accelerating and co-financing Poste Italiane’s infrastructural and real estate transformation, while
improving the operational efficiency and sustainability of the infrastructure itself.

The operation will also involve several operators specialised in logistics real estate development who will be able to contribute
financial resources and specialised know-how and thus accelerate the site renewal process.

Acquisition of a stake in Telecom Italia SpA and sale of Nexi
SpA

On 15 February 2025, the Board of Directors of Poste Italiane SpA resolved to acquire approximately 9.81% of the ordinary
shares of Telecom ltalia SpA (“Tim”) currently held by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti SpA (“Cassa Depositi e Prestiti”). At the same
time, the Board of Directors resolved to sell the entire stake held by Poste Italiane in Nexi SpA (“Nexi”) - equal to approximately
3.78% of the share capital - to Cassa Depositi e Prestiti itself.
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